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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH
ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM"”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in
such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to

professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is
a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a

liguid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or

any part of the contents of this report.

This report for which the directors of Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings
Limited collectively and individually accept full responsibility,
includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with
regard to Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited. The directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best
of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this
report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report

misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement

EERE

For and on behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Hua
Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2010.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Despite the slow economic growth of the People’s Republic of
China (the "PRC”) and uncertainty in the economic recovery
during the period of global recession, financial tsunami and
dampens on market sentiment (such as the Europe’s debt
crisis), the Group's achieved a revenue growth for the year
ended 31 March 2010. Turnover of the Group for the year
was approximately HK$179.765 million in comparison with
HK$170.087 million in 2009. The improvement in revenue for the
year ended 31 March 2010 was mainly driven by the contribution
in turnover generated from the general hospital services and the
pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution and pharmaceutical
retail chain business in the PRC. Gross profit of the Group was
approximately HK$64.384 million in comparison with HK$97.337
million in 2009.

OPERATION REVIEW

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group successfully
diversified its healthcare business into the pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution and pharmaceutical retail chain

business in the Fujian Province, the PRC.
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On 8 March 2010, the Group completed the acquisition of the
entire equity interest of Huihao Medicine Wholesale Group
(comprises of Hui Hao (HK) Group Limited, Fujian Province
Fuzhou City Huihao Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd, Putian Medicine
Co. Ltd and Fujian Huiming Medicine Co. Ltd) (“Huihao
Medicine Wholesale Group”), one of the leading distributors
and providers of supply chain services for pharmaceutical and
healthcare products in the Fujian Province, the PRC in terms
of scale of operation, distribution network and operates the
largest national pharmaceutical centre in the Fujian Province,
the PRC in terms of operation and centre area. The Group also
completed the acquisition of 99.29% equity interest (through
control agreements) of Fujian Huihao Sihai Pharmaceutical Chain
Company Limited (“Huihao Sihai”), the leader in pharmaceutical
retail chain with 85 retail drug stores located in major cities in
the Fujian Province, the PRC. The total consideration of HK$600
million was settled by cash, promissory note and convertible

preference shares.

On 29 January 2010, Ally Health International Limited ("Ally
Health”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company entered into
the sale and purchase agreement pursuant to which Ally Health
agreed to sale the entire issued share capital of Direct Way Group
Limited (“Direct Way”) and Smart Peak Limited (“Smart Peak"”)
(two wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company) at the cash
consideration of HK$4.5 million and HK$2 million respectively. The
principal asset of Direct Way is the indirect 70% interest in Foshan
Qide Hospital and the principal asset of Smart Peak is the indirect
100% interest in Fuzhou Zhuoxin Enterprises Management
Consultancy Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of Smart Peak)
which controls (through control agreements) of Bengbu Aomeijia
Hospital. The disposal of these 2 hospitals has enhanced the
Group hospital portfolio and streamlined the Group's general

hospital services operation.
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Chairman’s Statement

EERSE

The Board announced that on 14 October 2009, Zhuhai
Zhongkangan, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into the service agreement with the Zhuhai Jiulong
Hospital Limited and its existing shareholders (the “Jiulong’s
Shareholders”) pursuant to which (i) Zhuhai Zhongkangan
agreed to provide management service in relation to Zhuhai
Jialong Hospital, a hospital owned by the Zhuhai Jiulong Hospital
Limited for a term of 10 years and at an annual management
fee calculated with reference to the revenue and profit of that
hospital; and (ii) the Jiulong’s Shareholders granted the call option
to Zhuhai Zhongkangan to purchase all or part of the Jiulong's
Shareholders equity interest in that hospital at a price with
reference to an estimated after-tax profit of the Zhuhai Jiulong

Hospital Limited as may be agreed by the parties.

APPRECIATION

The year under review is a year full of developments within the
Group. Our Group has been deploying resources effectively in
launching new services, identifying new business partners as well
as other investment opportunities aiming at improving both the

Group's earning base and asset base.

I would like to thank our management team and all our staff
for their untiring efforts and significant contribution during the
past year. | would also like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere gratitude and appreciation to all our fellow shareholders
and institutional investors for their continuous support and

confidence in our Group.

Yung Kwok Leong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2010
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Summary of the results of the Group for the financial year ended
31 March 2010 is as follows:

o Turnover was approximately HK$179.765 million as
compared to a turnover of approximately HK$170.087
million for the previous year.

o Gross profit was approximately HK$64.384 million as
compared to a gross profit of approximately HK$97.337
million for the previous year.

o Net loss attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$211.283 million as compared to a net loss
attributable to owners of approximately HK$200.548 million
for the previous year.

o The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2010 (2009: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of general
hospital and healthcare and hospital management services,
pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution and pharmaceutical
retail chain business in the PRC.

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010 have
shown improvement in turnover compared with the previous
year. Turnover of the Group for the year was approximately
HK$179.765 million in comparison with HK$170.087 million in
2009. The improvement in revenue for the year ended 31 March
2010 was mainly driven by the contribution in turnover generated
from the general hospital services and the pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution and pharmaceutical retail chain
business in the PRC. Gross profit of the Group was approximately
HK$64.384 million in comparison with HK$97.337 million in
2009. The decrease in gross profit of the Group was mainly
affected by the performance of individual hospitals in the PRC.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEN®E DN

Net loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2010 was approximately HK$211.283 million
(2009: net loss approximately HK$200.548 million). The net
loss was mainly due to the impairment loss on the goodwill
of approximately HK$171.422 million which arised during the
acquisition of the hospitals in the PRC between 2007 and 2008.

Selling and distribution expenses for the year ended 31 March
2010 to approximately HK$22.277 million as compared to
approximately HK$19.426 million for the corresponding period
last year. Such increase was related to the marketing and

promotional expenses of the hospitals in the PRC.

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 March 2010
amounted to approximately HK$52.914 million (2009:
approximately HK$50.416 million). The increases were mainly
due to the increased in numbers of staff and related staff costs.
Also, the professional expenses incurred for the acquisition of the
pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution and pharmaceutical

retail chain business in the Fujian Province, the PRC.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

General hospital services

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group had 5 general
hospitals operating in different cities of the PRC (i.e. Chongging,
Jiaxing, Shangrao, Foshan and Bengbu) which principally engaged
in the provision of general hospital services including but not
limited to medicine ward, surgical ward, cosmetic surgery,
dermatology department and medical checkup and examination.
The total turnover contributed by these general hospitals for
the year ended 31 March 2010 was approximately HK$125.360
million (2009: approximately HK$155.719 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Healthcare and hospital management services

The Group provides healthcare management and training and
consultancy for hospitals in the PRC which included advising on
management strategies, operation and business model, logistics
and procurement, workflow and human resources, market
strategies and providing training and administrative support. The
turnover contributed by the healthcare and hospital management
services for the year ended 31 March 2010 was approximately
HK$1.550 million (2009: approximately HK$14.368 million).

Pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution

On 8 March 2010, the Group has successfully completed the
acquisition of the entire equity interest of Huihao Medicine
Wholesale Group. The Huihao Medicine Wholesale Group
maintains solid business connections with thousands of drug
manufacturers on a provincial basis, and has formed strategic
co-operation with other major pharmaceutical corporations in six
neighborhood provinces in the PRC. The turnover contributed by
the pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution from 8 March to 31

March 2010 was approximately HK$43.071 million.

Pharmaceutical retail chain

On 8 March 2010, the Group has successfully completed
the acquisition of 99.29% equity interest (through control
agreements) of Huihao Sihai. Major business of Huihao Sihai is
the retailing of pharmaceutical products. Its pharmaceutical retail
chain operation is the leader in pharmaceutical retail chains in the
Fujian Province, the PRC in terms of number of retail drug stores.
There are currently 85 direct drug stores located in major cities
in the Fujian Province, the PRC under the brand name “Huihao
Sihai”. The turnover contributed by pharmaceutical retail chain
from 8 March to 31 March 2010 was approximately HK$9.784

million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

Future Prospects

The directors expect that the global economic environment
will remain challenging for the year 2010. The management
of the Group will continue to adapt to the changing business
environment with effective and efficient measures and continue to
keep focus on its core healthcare and pharmaceutical businesses
in the PRC. The strong economic growth and increasing healthcare
expenditures in the PRC are major drivers for greater demands for
quality hospital services and affordable pharmaceutical products.
The directors therefore remain optimistic about the promising
healthcare and pharmaceutical sectors in the PRC in the long-run
including but not limited to possible future investments in or co-
operations with healthcare and pharmaceutical businesses in the
PRC (making use of various acquisition means, such as integrating
hospitals and streamlining resources to expand the healthcare
and pharmaceutical businesses more effectively.) At the same
time, the implementation of the healthcare reform measures
and the government-dictated improvement of the healthcare
standards on a national basis will lead to seamless co-operation
between hospital management enterprises and distributors of
pharmaceutical products in the PRC, thus increasing the business
opportunities for the Group as a whole. After taking into
account such factors and undertaking those businesses which are
complementary to the existing healthcare business of the Group
as a further step, the diversification into the pharmaceutical sector
would consequently create synergetic effects among the core
business divisions, ultimately contributing noticeable benefits to
the Group and enhancing shareholders’ returns in the long-run.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group had total cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$59.712 million as at 31 March 2010 (2009: approximately
HK$88.506 million). For the year ended 31 March 2010,
the Group paid HK$20 million as cash consideration for the
acquisition of the pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution and
pharmaceutical retail chain business in the Fujian Province, the
PRC.

The Group recorded total current assets of approximately
HK$413.372 million as at 31 March 2010 (2009: approximately
HK$115.735 million) and total current liabilities of approximately
HK$301.031 million as at 31 March 2010 (2009: approximately
HK$38.734 million). The current ratio of the Group, calculated
by dividing the current assets by the current liabilities, was
approximately 1.373 as at 31 March 2010 (2009: approximately
2.988).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

Summary of the Group’s material acquisition and disposal of

subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2010 is as follows:

1. On 29 January 2010, Ally Health a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company entered into the sale and purchase
agreement pursuant to which Ally Health agreed to sale
the entire issued share capital of Direct Way and Smart
Peak (two wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company) at
the cash consideration of HK$4.5 million and HK$2 million
respectively. The principal asset of Direct Way is the indirect
70% interest in Foshan Qide Hospital and the principal
asset of Smart Peak is the indirect 100% interest in Fuzhou
Zhuoxin Enterprises Management Consultancy Limited (a
wholly owned subsidiary of Smart Peak) which controls
(through control agreements) of Bengbu Aomeijia Hospital.
The disposal of these 2 hospitals has enhanced the Group
hospital portfolio and streamlined the Group’s general

hospital services operation.

2. On 8 March 2010, the Group completed the acquisition
of the entire equity interest of Huihao Medicine Wholesale
Group, one of the leading distributors and providers of
supply chain services for pharmaceutical and healthcare
products in the Fujian Province, the PRC in terms of scale
of operation, distribution network and operates the largest
national pharmaceutical centre in the Fujian Province, the
PRC in terms of operation and centre area. The Group
also completed the acquisition of 99.29% equity interest
(through control agreements) of Huihao Sihai, the leader
in pharmaceutical retail chain with 85 direct drug stores
located in major cities in the Fujian Province, the PRC. The
total consideration of HK$600 million was settled by cash,

promissory note and convertible preference shares.

Details of the acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries are disclosed
in the Notes 34 and 35 to the financial statements on pages 133
to 137.
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EEEFN®E DN

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2010, no member of the Group was engaged

in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and no
litigation or claim of material importance was known to the
directors to be pending or threatened against any member of the

Group.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Since almost all transactions of the Group are denominated in
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars and most of the bank deposits
are being kept in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars to minimize
exposure to foreign exchange risk, the directors believe that there
is no significant foreign exchange risk to the Group. Therefore,
the Group had not implemented any formal hedging or other

alternative policies to deal with such exposure during the year.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had bank-borrowing outstanding
balances of approximately HK$47.310 million. The Group's
pledged bank deposits of approximately HK$17.274 million were

used to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the year, the revenue of the Group was principally
generated from: (1) provision of general hospital services; (2)
provision of healthcare and hospital management service; (3)
pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution and pharmaceutical
retail chain business. Geographically, the Group has expanded
business operations into the Fujian Province, the PRC. Financial
information in respect of these operations is presented in Note 5

to the financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2010, the total issued share capital of the
Company was approximately HK$466.423 million (2009:
approximately HK$224.756 million) divided into 4,495,111,986
ordinary shares and 4,833,333,333 non-voting convertible
preference shares (2009: 4,495,111,986 ordinary shares) of
HK$0.05 each.

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during

the year are set out in Note 16 to the financial statements.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION
As at 31 March 2010, the Group had 1,552 (2009: 670) full time
employees (including directors) as shown in the following table:

EEEFN®E DM

BEERIE
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Hong Kong BH 17
PRC (including cities of Beijing, FE (BfEdET - EEW 1,535

Chongging, Jiaxing, Shangrao, EEH -~ LW

Zhuhai and the Fujian Province)

For the year ended 31 March 2010, staff costs (including directors
emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$31.103 million
(2009: approximately HK$16.621 million). The Group remunerates
its employees based on individual performance and qualification.
Apart from the basic remuneration, staff benefits include the
contribution to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, bonus
and medical coverage in Hong Kong; and basic insurance for
the elderly, basic medical insurance, work injury insurance and
unemployment insurance to the employees in the PRC. The Group
also adopted employee share option scheme to provide eligible
employees a performance incentive for continuous and improved
services with the Group and to enhance their contributions to
increase profits by encouraging capital accommodation and share

ownership.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profiles

EERGREEAERHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yung Kwok Leong (“Mr. Yung”), aged 45, the Chairman of
the Board, being a registered economist in the Fujian Province in
the PRC, has over 20 years’ experience in corporate management
and investment in the healthcare and environmental protection
sectors in the PRC. Mr. Yung is currently the chairman of Hong
Kong Putian Co. and the honorable chairman of Hong Kong
Puxian Native Association. Mr. Yung is also currently the vice-
chairman of the National Committee of the Health, the Health
Insurance Association of Fujian and the committee member of
Putian City, Fujian Committee of Chinese Political Consultative
Conference. Mr. Yung was appointed as an executive director of
the Company, the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company on 2 March 2005, 29 April 2005 and 26
March 2010 respectively.

Dr. Jiang Tao (“Dr. Jiang”), aged 54, holds a doctorate degree in
audiology from the Arizona School of Health Sciences, Kirksville
College of Osteopathic Medicine in the United States of America
(the "USA") and two master degrees in audiology and special
education from Lamar University of Texas in the USA. He served as
senior management in several enterprises in the USA, Canada and
the PRC with over 20 years of experience in senior management,
consultancy and investment in the PRC, Hong Kong, Canada and
the USA. Dr. Jiang is currently the professor of Kunming Normal
University in the PRC and visiting professor of Sun Yat-sen Medical
University and Sichuan Foreign Language University in the PRC.
Dr. Jiang was appointed as an executive director and Deputy Chief
Executive of the Company on 3 January 2007 and 26 March 2010
respectively.

Mr. Weng Jiaxing (“"Mr. Weng”), aged 34, holds a bachelor
degree in finance. Mr. Weng has over 10 years of managerial
experience in retail chain, healthcare and pharmaceutical
businesses. Mr. Weng was appointed as an executive director and
Deputy Chief Executive of the Company on 26 March 2010.

Mr. Zheng Gang (“Mr. Zheng”), aged 42, holds a master degree
in business administration from Cardiff Business School in the
United Kingdom and a bachelor degree in engineering from
Xiamen University in the PRC. Mr. Zheng has over 15 years of
management experience in finance, investment and trading. Mr.
Zheng was appointed as an executive director of the Company on
1 August 2007.

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
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Dr. Huang Jiaqing (“Dr. Huang”), aged 59, has over 25 years
of professional experience in the PRC's medical fields, including
clinical, preventive and emergency medicine. Dr. Huang has
served as clinical doctor, director of hospital’s emergency centre,
head of the sanitation and anti-epidemic department in hospital,
head of the hospital and medical administration bureau in the
PRC municipal government. To honour Dr. Huang’s distinguished
expertise in the medical fields, he enjoys special subsidisation from
the State Council of the PRC. Dr. Huang is currently the executive
vice president of the Group. Dr. Huang was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 30 July 2009.

Mr. Chen Jin Shan (“Mr. Chen”), aged 42, holds a bachelor
degree in finance and accounting in the PRC. Mr. Chen has
over 15 years of accounting experience in private companies.
He had also been a project manager for more than 6 years in an
accounting firm. He is currently an independent non-executive
director of Citychamp Dartong Company Limited which is listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr. Chen was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 25 April 2006.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Wong Yu Man, James (“Dr. Wong”), aged 56, holds two
bachelor degrees in medicine and surgery from the University of
Hong Kong. Dr. Wong also holds a doctorate degree in medicine
from Freiburg University in Germany. He has over 27 years of
experience in medical and healthcare services in Hong Kong.
Dr. Wong was appointed as the non-executive director of the
Company on 20 March 2007.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne ("Ms. Wong”), aged 46, has over 20
years of experience in finance, accounting, taxation and corporate
affairs. She is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in Australia, a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the
Society of Trust and Estate Practitioners. Ms. Wong holds a
bachelor degree in economics from the University of Sydney,
Australia. Ms. Wong is currently the managing director of a
private company providing consulting and management services,
a registered Insurance Agent, as well as the chief financial officer
of a local law firm and consultant of a local CPA firm. Ms. Wong
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EERGREEAERHE

is also currently an independent non-executive director and a
member of the remuneration committee and the chairman of
the audit committee of Cardlink Technology Group Limited
which is listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Wong
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 1 November 2007.

Prof. Hu Shanlian (“Prof. Hu"), aged 73, is a professor in
health economics and has a master degree in science from the
London School of Tropical Medicine and Hygiene. At present, he
is the director of Training Centre for Health Management and
Pharmacoeconomics Research and Evaluation Centre at School
of Public Health at Fudan University in the PRC. Prof. Hu is also
the director of Health Development Research Centre in the
Shanghai Bureau of Health. Prof. Hu also held senior positions in
the National Health Economic Institution and China Network of
Training and Research in Health Economics and Financing between
1991 and 2005, which were supported by the Ministry of Health
of the PRC and World Bank respectively. Prof. Hu was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 30
July 2009.

Prof. Lu Chuanzhen (“Prof. Lu”), aged 72, is a neurologist and
has over 40 years of medical professional experience. Prof. Lu
is currently the lifetime professor of Shanghai Huashan Hospital
in the PRC and a director in the World Health Organisation’s
Neuroscience Research and Training Centre. Prof. Lu is also the
chairman and director of the Institute of Neurology in Shanghai
Medical University, the chairman of the Chinese Association of
Neurology and chairman of the Shanghai association of Neurology
in the Chinese Medical Society. Prof. Lu also has an international
membership with New York Academy of Sciences. Prof. Lu was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 30 July 2009.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lam Williamson (“Mr. Lam”), aged 35, joined the Group
in December 2007. Mr. Lam is the Group’s chief financial officer
and company secretary of the Company. He has over 10 years’
experience in finance and company secretarial functions. Mr. Lam
is a member of the Certified Practising Accountant in Australia
and also a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Subject to the deviations as disclosed in this report, the
Company has complied with all the code provisions on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in the GEM Listing Rules by
establishing formal and transparent procedures to protect and
maximise the interests of shareholders during the year under

review.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all directors,
the directors have complied with such code of conduct and the
required standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the directors throughout the year ended
31 March 2010.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETING
The Board members for the year ended 31 March 2010 and up to

the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Yung Kwok Leong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Dr. Jiang Tao (Deputy Chief Executive)

Mr. Weng lJiaxing (Deputy Chief Executive)
(appointed on 26 March 2010)

Mr. Zheng Gang

Ms. Shum Ngai Pan

(retired on 30 July 2009)

Dr. Huang Jiaging

(appointed on 30 July 2009)

Mr. Chen Jin Shan

Non-executive director:

Dr. Wong Yu Man, James
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Independent non-executive directors:
Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne

Mr. Hsu William Shiu Foo

(retired on 30 July 2009)

Prof. Yu Chai Mei

(retired on 30 July 2009)

Prof. Hu Shanlian

(appointed on 30 July 2009)

Prof. Lu Chuanzhen

(appointed on 30 July 2009)

The Board is currently composed of six executive directors
(including the Chairman), one non-executive director and three
independent non-executive directors with a balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the Group. The
Board is responsible for corporate strategy, annual and interim
results, succession planning, risk management, major acquisitions,
disposals and capital transaction, and other significant operational
and financial matters. Major corporate matters that are
specifically delegated by the Board to the management include
the preparation of annual and interim accounts for the Board
approval before public reporting, execution of business strategies
and initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate
systems of internal controls and risk management procedures, and
compliance with relevant statutory requirements and rules and

regulations.

The directors’ biographical information is set out on pages 16
to 18 of this Annual Report. All executive directors have given
sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Group. Each
executive director has sufficient experience to hold the position as
to carry out his or her duties effectively and efficiently. There is no

relationship among the members of the Board.
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The Company appointed three independent non-executive
directors who have appropriate and sufficient experience and
qualifications to carry out their duties so as to protect the interests
of shareholders. All of them have been appointed for a term
of one year from the date of appointment and will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving each other not
less than one month’s notice. Each director should be subject to

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Pursuant to the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules,
the Company has received written confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence to the
Company. Based on such confirmations of independence, the
Company considers all of the independent non-executive directors

to be independent.

The Board held a regular board meeting for each quarter to

consider and approve the Group’s results announcement.
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Details of the attendance of the meetings of the Board are as

ESHFESEER2HBOT ¢

follows:

Directors Attendance
EE HiFE
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) 2/4
SEREE (ZERTHAER)

Dr. Jiang Tao (Deputy Chief Executive) 4/4
BEEL (THEEE)

Mr. Weng lJiaxing (Deputy Chief Executive) (appointed on 26 March 2010) 0/4
SMBELE (THAEZ) ( RZE-FF=ZA=+HEZE)

Mr. Zheng Gang 4/4
SR8 5T £

Ms. Shum Nagai Pan (retired on 30 July 2009) 0/4
RBELZLE (RZZEZEAFLA=Z+HEBRMD)

Dr. Huang Jiaging (appointed on 30 July 2009) 1/4
ENMEELE (RZZEZENFLA=ZTHEZME)

Mr. Chen Jin Shan 3/4
BRIk

Dr. Wong Yu Man, James 1/4
THRREE

Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne 4/4
B2zt

Mr. Hsu William Shiu Foo (retired on 30 July 2009) 0/4
BEREE (RZZEZAFLA=ZTHEEMD)

Prof. Yu Chai Mei (retired on 30 July 2009) 0/4
REZHE (R=ZZ2EAF A=+ BEME)

Prof. Hu Shanlian (appointed on 30 July 2009) 3/4
HEBRER (RZESEAFLA=+TBEEZMD)

Prof. Lu Chuanzhen (appointed on 30 July 2009) 1/4

EEEER (R-ZEEAFLA=THEZME)

Apart from the above regular board meetings of the year, the
Board will meet on other occasions when a Board level decision on

a particular matter is required.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
are not segregated and are exercised by the same individual. Mr.
Yung Kwok Leong serves as the Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer. The Board believes that vesting the roles of
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer in the same person
provides consistent and sustainable development of the Group,
strong and consistent leadership in the Company’s decision

making and operational efficiency.

Non-executive Director

Code provision A.4.1 provides that non-executive director should
be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. The
Company’s non-executive director has been appointed for specific

term and subject to re-election.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The remuneration committee was established on 3 June 2005
in compliance with the code provision. The chairman of the
committee is Mr. Zheng Gang, an executive director of the
Company, and other members include Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne,
Prof. Hu Shanlian and Prof. Lu Chuanzhen, all of them are the

independent non-executive directors of the Company.

The role and function of the remuneration committee include
the determination of the specific remuneration package of all
executive directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment, and making
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-
executive directors. The remuneration committee considers factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-based

remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, no meeting was held but
resolutions in writing from the remuneration committee members
were passed to consider and approve the emoluments of the new

executive directors and independent non-executive directors.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board does not establish a nomination committee in
consideration of the size of the Group. The Board is empowered
under the Company’s articles of association to appoint any
person as a director either to fill a casual vacancy on or as an
additional member of the Board. Suitable candidates will be
proposed to the Board for consideration, and the Board will
review the qualifications of the relevant candidate for determining
the suitability to the Group on the basis of his qualifications,

experience and background.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year ended 31 March 2010, the fees paid or payable to

the auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by

the auditors of the Group were as follows:

Nature of services

EREZRA

ZRIAEBRE  EESWERYREE
EE -EZERBEARACABERAER
BREEEFATHEES  LUEBRRZRY
HEESS2HERE - SBARBRE2ZES
BUMEZE MESSHRBERBEAZERE
BRRAESTEARTESRAEEZEE -

£ B4 Bl B &
RBE-Z-FFE=A=+-ARLFE BF
EERBETREZ BURFERRHC A
NFRUM2BAMT :

Amount (HK$'000)

REME &#E(FERT)
Audit services 1,050
BEZRE

Non-audit services 1,200
FEEZ R

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 2 November
2001, with written terms of reference in compliance with rules
5.28 to 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
audit committee are: (i) to ensure the adequacy and effectiveness
of the accounting and financial controls of the Group; (ii)
oversee the performance of internal control systems and financial
reporting process; and (iii) monitor the integrity of the financial
statements and compliance with statutory and listing requirements
and to oversee independence and qualifications of the external
auditors. The audit committee comprises three members,
including Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne, Prof. Hu Shanlian and Prof.
Lu Chuanzhen. All of them are the independent non-executive
directors. The chairlady of the audit committee is Ms. Wong Ka

Wai, Jeanne.
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The audit committee held four meetings during the year under
review. Details of the attendance of the audit committee meetings

are as follows:

Corporate Governance Report

EERERRSE

ERZEENEEFEABRTNRER -§
REHFERZEEERZFBAOT

Members Attendance
4] HiEE
Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne 4/4
% Fogun

Mr. Hsu William Shiu Foo (resigned on 30 July 2009) 0/4
BREREE (R=ZZEZAFLA=ZTHEBME)

Prof. Yu Chai Mei (resigned on 30 July 2009) 0/4
RBZHEE (R=ZZEAFLA=Z+HBBMD)

Prof. Hu Shanlian (appointed on 30 July 2009) 3/4
HEBAEE (R=ZEZEAFLA=Z+HEZM)

Prof. Lu Chuanzhen (appointed on 30 July 2009) 1/4

EEEHER (R-ZZEZENFLA=1THEZD)

The Group’s unaudited quarterly and interim results and annual
audited results during the year ended 31 March 2010 have been
reviewed by the audit committee, which was of the opinion that
the preparation of such results complied with the applicable
accounting standards and requirements and that adequate

disclosure has been made.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining the Group’s internal
control and for reviewing the effectiveness of these controls.
Internal control systems are designed to meet the particular needs

of the Group and the risk to which it is exposed.

REBEZ-Z-ZF=A=+t—-HLEHFE £&
e REERFERTHRESR  URKEERSR
FEE YECEHERZESEN - ERZEE
ERA ZEXACERBASHEARKAE
R YEHFHEDKE -

B &S
EFRAEMNAREIABELE  TRHY
SERREFZAN - WBERHEHRES
RE2BHBERFEY 2 BRRE -
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In consideration of the size of the Group, the Board does not
consider to establish an internal audit team at present. However,
the key control procedure established by the Group is a day-to-day
supervision of the business by the executive directors, supported
by the managers responsible for the operation and the key division
support functions of finance, information system and human
resources. Key elements of internal control described below have

been in place throughout the year under review:

- procedures for the approval of capital expenditure and

payments;

- regular financial information provided to management for

reviewing the Group’s performance; and

- clearly defined management structure and lines of

responsibility.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group. The Board is not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or condition that might
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
in business. Accordingly, the Board has prepared the financial

statements of the Company on a going concern basis.

The Board also acknowledges its responsibility to present a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment in the Company’s
annual, interim and quarterly reports, other price-sensitive
announcements and other financial disclosures required under the
GEM Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS EHERREZIEBHE

AND INVESTORS

The Board believes that a transparent and timely disclosure EEEHRE ZUMBRRELAEBZER
of the Group’s information will enable shareholders and BURRARREEFLRERERE  LMNR
investors to make the best investment decision and to have TRAEEEBRBERER - HAQAT 2 ER
better understanding on the Group’s business performance EENRREREEBRRRAERSECREEZS
and strategies. It is also vital for developing and maintaining BREREREE -

continuing investor relations with the Company’s potential and

existing investors.

The Company maintains a website at “www.huaxia-healthcare. AN FEE B[ www.huaxia-healthcare.
com” as a communication platform with shareholders and com] EFRERRERREEZEBB2FEE K
investors, where information and updates on the Group's financial SESEREAMREFMBEREAMER
information and other information are available for public access. DR ARER -
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The directors present their annual report and the audited financial

statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010.

DATE OF INCORPORATION
The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 28 May

2001 under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands.

The shares of the Company were listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange on 10 May 2002.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company while its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of general
hospital and healthcare and hospital management services,
pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution and pharmaceutical
retail chain business in the PRC. Details of the principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 43 to the financial

statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 5% of the Group's total sales and
sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to

approximately 1.7%.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the
Group's five largest suppliers were approximately 17% of the
Group's total purchases and purchases from the largest supplier

included therein amounted to approximately 5%.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder, which
to the knowledge of the directors owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in the share

capital of any of the five largest customers of the Group.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at 31 March

2010 are set out in the financial statements on pages 45 to 155.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during

the year are set out in Note 16 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out on page 105 to 106 and in Note
17 to the financial statements and in the consolidated statement

of changes in equity respectively.

The Company had no distributable reserves as at 31 March 2010.
Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions
of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and provided
that immediately following the distribution or dividend the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business. In accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association, dividends shall be distributed out of the retained
profits or other reserves, including the share premium account, of

the Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in Note 6 to the financial

statements.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE

CONTRACTS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date

of this report are:

Executive directors:

Mr. Yung Kwok Leong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Dr. Jiang Tao (Deputy Chief Executive)

Mr. Weng Jiaxing (Deputy Chief Executive)
(appointed on 26 March 2010)

Mr. Zheng Gang

Ms. Shum Ngai Pan

(retired on 30 July 2009)

Dr. Huang Jiaging

(appointed on 30 July 2009)

Mr. Chen Jin Shan

Non-executive director:
Dr. Wong Yu Man, James

Independent non-executive directors:
Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne

Mr. Hsu William Shiu Foo

(retired on 30 July 2009)

Prof. Yu Chai Mei

(retired on 30 July 2009)

Prof. Hu Shanlian

(appointed on 30 July 2009)

Prof. Lu Chuanzhen

(appointed on 30 July 2009)

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Weng lJiaxing, Mr. Zheng Gang and Mr. Chen
Jin Shan, the executive directors of the Company, will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming

general meeting.
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Mr. Yung Kwok Leong, the executive director of the Company and
chairman of the Board has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company for a period of one year commencing from 1 February
2007 which will continue thereafter until terminated by either
party giving to the other party not less than one month’s notice in

writing.

Dr. Jiang Tao has been appointed as an executive director by
way of a letter of appointment with the Company for a period of
one year commencing from 3 January 2007 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other

party not less than one month’s notice in writing.

Mr. Weng Jiaxing has been appointed as an executive director by
way of a letter of appointment with the Company for a period of
one year commencing from 26 March 2010 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other

party not less than one month’s notice in writing.

Mr. Zheng Gang has been appointed as an executive director by
way of a letter of appointment with the Company for a period of
one year commencing from 1 August 2007 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other

party not less than one month’s notice in writing.

Mr. Chen Jin Shan has been appointed as an executive director
by way of a letter of appointment with the Company for a period
of one year commencing from 25 April 2006 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other

party not less than one month’s notice in writing.

Dr. Huang Jiaging has been appointed as an executive director by
way of a letter of appointment with the Company for a period
of one year commencing from 30 July 2009 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other

party not less than one month’s notice in writing.
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Dr. Wong Yu Man, James, has been appointed as the non-
executive director by way of a letter of appointment with the
Company for a period of one year commencing from 20 March
2007 which will continue thereafter until terminated by either
party giving to the other party not less than one month’s notice in

writing.

Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director by way of a letter of appointment with the
Company for a period of one year commencing from 1 November
2007 which will continue thereafter until terminated by either
party giving to the other party not less than one month’s notice in

writing.

Prof. Hu Shanlian and Prof. Lu Chuanzhen have been appointed
as independent non-executive directors by way of letters
of employment with the Company for a period of one year
commencing from 30 July 2009 which will continue thereafter
until terminated by either party giving to the other party not less

than one month’s notice in writing.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors has any service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009/2010

ITHRRBECEARQAUNZEZSZERFH
TES B-ZELF=A-tHEFRH-
FoUWBRERERE  EEEFN-—FEAS—F
BHAOR—ERAZEABANRLERERL -

ERBLICEARAUREEZERBAHE
HITES B-ZT2LHF+-A-REAAH
—F  UHREREE BEEEA-FESEH
—REHRTAOR—ERAZEABANRILEBES
ko

HEBAREBERAKCEARAUEE
ERAERBIUNFVTES B-Z2ZTNFLA
ZtREFAS-—F UEREREE EE
FA-FAZNI—-FEERPR—ERZEM
BHAILBERLE -

BREXPRIZFEES  WEESERARQATHE(E
AMBLRTLAKRETNER-—FRNBABE
CEERMERN MR ZRBELH




DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES

AND DEBENTURES
Disclosure of Interests

(a)

Directors’ interests and short positions in the securities
of the Company and its associated corporations

As at 31 March 2010, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required
standards of dealings by directors of the Company as
referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules,

were as follows:
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(a)

EERFZAFIREABRIEZESZE
aRke

R-ZZ-ZHF=ZA=1t—-R0 A2FE
ERFRTHRAEEADAHEEM[E
BorE (ERRBSRMERKRA (BHR
HEMRD D) EXVER) 2R in ~ HERD K
ERERTHEERER SR BERME352
RERALNAFECECMAH 2B
RKR  RRBAER EHRAES 46E
SE/TRMMMARNTESETEEZRE
BREBAES RN A KRB 2 EE R
AWT :

(i) Interests in shares: (i) RIFBESR:
Approximate
percentage
Nature Number of the total
Name of director of interest of shares Position issued shares
HERT
Bin@EHz
EENE BEanHg BHh®E B BHask
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong Corporate interest (Note) 1,209,605,000 Long 26.91%
FE=EE A TR (FFEE) 1,209,605,000 wa 26.91%
Personal interest 4,848,802,083 Long 107.87%
EPN £ 4,848,802,083 wE 107.87%
Mr. Weng Jiaxing Personal interest 14,062,500 Long 0.31%
HME LA (PN 14,062,500 e 0.31%
Mr. Zheng Gang Personal interest 9,000,000 Long 0.20%
e B AR 9,000,000 ) 0.20%
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Note 1: These shares are held through Easeglory Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, the entire issued share

capital of which is owned by Mr. Yung Kwok Leong.

Note 2: The 4,848,802,083 shares represent (i) the
15,468,750 shares beneficially owned by Mr. Yung
Kwok Leong, and (ii) the 4,833,333,333 convertible

preference shares.

(ii) Interests in share options under Post-IPO share

MizET -

MizE2 :

LERGTIEBZRBEZERER
DA (RRBEZHSEMA
V2BERAREFRE -HER
ERTRAHSEZLERE
5o

2%4,848,802,083K K 5
BOSBERAE-BmER
215,468,750 B #H &
(ii)4,833,333,333R T R B
il

(i) BALHREEBREHBETZ

option scheme: BRERES :
Number of
Exercise  share options
Name of director Exercise period price granted Position
gtz
EERE T TR MEkENE A
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong 30 September 2009 to 29 March 2019 HK$0.050 17,000,000 Long
PERKE —ETNFARZ=TAHE 0.0508 7T 17,000,000 ##&
“Z-NE=RA=thA
Dr. Jiang Tao 30 September 2009 to 29 March 2019 HK$0.050 8,000,000 Long
BREL ZEENERAZTHE 0.050% 7T 8,000,000 ##&
“E-AF=RA=tAhHE
23 March 2010 to 22 March 2015 HK$0.117 15,000,000 Long
ZE-ZF=ZA=-+ZHZE 0.117#&7T 15,000,000 ##&
—E-RF=ZA=+=H
Mr. Weng Jiaxing 23 March 2010 to 22 March 2015 HK$0.117 19,000,000 Long
SmExE —E-TE-A-+=RHZ 0.117#& 7T 19,000,000 ##&

“E-RE=ZAZ+ZH

34 Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009/2010




Report of the Directors

EEERE

Number of

Exercise  share options

Name of director Exercise period price granted Position
gtz
£ 3:3:1 TR fTE®| MEENE A
Mr. Zheng Gang 30 September 2009 to 29 March 2019 HK$0.050 17,000,000 Long
b P ZETNERRZTHE 0.050/ T 17,000,000 #H#&
—2-RAE=ZR=thH
23 March 2010 to 22 March 2015 HK$0.117 27,000,000 Long
“E-ZF=ZA=-+ZHZE 0.117#& 7T 27,000,000 ¥A&

—E-RE=ZA=+=H

Dr. Huang Jiaging 30 September 2009 to 29 March 2014 HK$0.05 10,000,000 Long

EMERE ZEEAFAARZTHE 0.050% 7T 10,000,000 #H&
“Z-mE=ZA=1+ANA

23 March 2010 to 22 March 2015 HK$0.117 3,000,000 Long

ZE-ZF=ZA=-+ZHZE 0.117#& 7T 3,000,000 #&

—E-HAF=HA=+=H

Mr. Chen Jin Shan 30 September 2009 to 29 March 2019 HK$0.050 17,000,000 Long

RElEE —EENFRA=THZE 0.050%& T 17,000,000 #H&
—E-RAF=A=t+NAH

23 March 2010 to 22 March 2015 HK$0.117 20,000,000 Long

—E-ZH=fA-+=HZ%E 0.1178 7 20,000,000 &

—E-RE=ZHA=+=H

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010, none of the MEYFIEEN  RZBE—SF=ZA=+—
directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any B APAISESERFTETHASBRBEEARD
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or AREEMAEREIE(ERRESF KAL)
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation — ZEXVER) Z(EARH -~ HER D REEHPE
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the EREZBFRBBERMIEIS2HFERARDTF
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352  BZERMAHEZRAR » HBRIBAIER
of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock EHRAIES 465676 BHNERNTREER
Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Pz R XA -
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Substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions
in shares and underlying shares

As at 31 March 2010, other than the interests of a director or
chief executive of the Company as disclosed under the heading
“Directors’ and chief executive’s interests in shares, underlying
shares and debentures” above, the interests and short positions
of persons in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company

under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

FERRREGREMRMZEGR KR

R-ZZB-ZF=A=Z1+-H REX[ESK
FRITBRAEBRRG - HEROREEE &
B —EHAREARARAESRERTRAEZ
REEN  UATATRADFTRD REERKRSH
BRERBESZRBERAIEIMABRELT
FEZRRMAE 2 BERAR

Long positions in shares of the Company: E=AFIRMZGE
Approximate
percentage
Number of of the total
Name of shareholder shares Position Capacity issued shares
HEBTRIZERN
BREE 8 H h-g s 53 ZEHES T
Easeglory Holdings Limited (Note 1) 1,209,605,000 Long Beneficial owner 26.91%
ZRERERAAE (K1) 1,209,605,000 Ha BEREAA 26.91%
Mrs. Yung Muk Ying (Note 1) 6,075,407,083 Long Interest of spouse 135.16%
HARELZ L (EET) 6,075,407,083 5} BB 135.16%

Note 1: The issued share capital of Easeglory Holdings Limited is 100%
beneficially owned by Mr. Yung Kwok Leong, an executive
director and the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. By virtue of her being the spouse of
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong, Mrs. Yung Muk Ying is deemed to be
interested in 1,209,605,000 shares held by Easeglory Holdings
Limited and 15,468,750 shares and 17,000,000 share options
and 4,833,333,333 convertible preference shares beneficially
held by Mr. Yung Kwok Leong in personal capacity.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010, the directors of
the Company were not aware of any other person (other than the
directors and chief executive of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SECURITIES

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
above, at no time since incorporation of the Company were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company or of any other body corporate
granted to any directors or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors,
their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age to

acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

As at 31 March 2010, there were 483,142,203 outstanding
share options, of which, 2,281,370 and 480,860,833 share
options were granted pursuant to the respective Pre-IPO share
option scheme and Post-IPO share option scheme. Details of the

outstanding share options as at 31 March 2010 were as follows:

(i) Pre-IPO scheme
As at 31 March 2010, there were 2,281,370 outstanding
share options pursuant to the Pre-IPO scheme adopted on
20 April 2002. A breakdown setting out the number of
outstanding share options, their respective exercise price and
respective exercise period under the Pre-IPO scheme was as

follows:
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EEWMRESzERN
BRENTESREIZTHRAERRSD  HER
REEIE2ERD | —BMREEN  A2F
BEEMAM LR SENENESRRESA
ZEBIRBTNEZF LR BEMER - &
EREEBEARNQBDREMEMEAERE
MRDIEEZMELR MRS FRETEZ
AN BARF  EERAFRSEEAHE
RATHESEEMALH  BEESE  FFF
BEBIARB T N\EZFLUESEMEMM
EABBRCZEER -

S B 4 T &Y
RZZ—ZFE=A=+-—8 BR1TEZHE
B& #EH483,142,20310 » H 2,281,370 &
480,860,833 BRI 7 Bl IRBE B X A B3
EAERENERER L AHEERERETS
BH -BEANR-ZZE—ZTE=ZA=+—BERKRT
FoEREZHFBOT

(i) BROMBEMED
RZZE-ZF=A=1+—8 RERKR=
ZE_FMNA-+HERMZERLHR
ERTETEIE T H2,281,37010 B R A 1 &
TE-BROBEREAFTEETHART
HEEREHE HEAZTEERTE
HAERARZNT :

Number of
share options
outstanding

Categories of grantees Exercise period Exercise price HHRITHEZ

KA TR fTER WEERE

Former employee and 25 April 2002 to 24 April 2012 HK$0.245 2,281,370
advisor of the Group

REEMEERER TEEFNMACZTHRBE 0.245% 7T 2,281,370

—_E-—F@MAZ+MAH
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(ii) Post-IPO share option scheme

On 12 July 2006, 21 March 2007, 30 March 2009 and
18 March 2010 respectively, the Company passed Board
resolutions pursuant to the Post-IPO scheme adopted on 20
April 2002 to grant a total of 480,860,833 share options
to directors, consultants and employees of the Group. It
was resolved that share options be offered to the directors,
consultants and employees respectively with a 5 year and
10 year exercise period each commencing from 13 July
2006, 21 March 2007, 30 September 2009 and 23 March
2010 respectively. The exercise prices of the share options
granted on 13 July 2006 and 21 March 2007 have been
adjusted to HK$0.376 and HK$0.306 respectively as a result
of the open offer become unconditional on 12 March 2009.
A breakdown setting out the number of the share options
outstanding, their respective exercise price and exercise

period for the year ended 31 March 2010 was as follows:

(i) BXROMRERMRER

RZZEERELA+TZH - ZZ2ZLEF=
B=Z+—-B ZEEAF=RA=+HR=
T-ZHF=F+/N\B RLAADHERE
EERER RBER-ZZ-_FWA=-+
Bz BRARBERTE OrEE
B BERBREERHHS$480,860,833
DERE - AQFBROBIOES - FER
REERLBERE  TEHSBIH=
RELtAT=R - ZBELF=ZA=+—
H ZZEZEAFAA=ZTHR=-Z—F
F=ZA-+=HE F2BRBHFERIO0
Fo-HRABMBER-ZEAF=ZAT+=
ARBEEG Rt RZZTEAE+L
A+t=Z=HR=ZEZLtF=ZA=-1+—HK
HeBREZITEES D BIFAER0.376
BTR0306B T BE_Z—ZF=H
:+—H¢$F’ﬁ*ﬁﬁz%ﬁﬁﬁ
CHEBZTEERTEHBMANT

Number of
share options

outstanding

Categories of grantees Exercise period Exercise price HERITHEZ
wBABRN fTHEEA TEE MBRENA
Directors
EE
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong 30 September 2009 to 29 March 2019 HK$0.050 17,000,000
FE=EE —EEANFENA=THE 0.0507% 7T 17,000,000
—E-AE=A=+NA
Dr. Jiang Tao 30 September 2009 to 29 March 2019 HK$0.050 8,000,000
BEEx —EERFENA=THZE 0.050% 7T 8,000,000
—2-hF=A=t+NA
23 March 2010 to 22 March 2015 HK$0.117 15,000,000
—ZE-ZEF=A-1+=HZ 0.117% 7T 15,000,000

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
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Number of
share options

outstanding

Categories of grantees Exercise period Exercise price HRITHEZ
ABBAER fTHER TER R A
Mr. Weng Jiaxing 23 March 2010 to 22 March 2015 HK$0.117 19,000,000
HnEEE “E-ZHFZAZ-+=HE 0.117#& T 19,000,000
—E-HAF=A=+=H
Mr. Zheng Gang 30 September 2009 to 29 March 2019 HK$0.050 17,000,000
ZR 8 55 & —EENFNRA=THE 0.0505%& 7T 17,000,000
—E-hEF=ZAZ=+HhH
23 March 2010 to 22 March 2015 HK$0.117 27,000,000
—E-ZEFZR=+Z=HE 0.117#& T 27,000,000
—E-RE=ZBZ-+ZH
Dr. Huang Jiaging 30 September 2009 to 29 March 2014 HK$0.05 10,000,000
EMEELE ZEEAFAB=THE 0.050% 7t 10,000,000
—E-mME=ZA=-+NA
23 March 2010 to 22 March 2015 HK$0.117 3,000,000
—E-ZEF=ZA=-+=HZE 0.117% 7T 3,000,000
—E-AFE=ZRA=+=H
Mr. Chen Jin Shan 30 September 2009 to 29 March 2019 HK$0.050 17,000,000
BRIk ZEEBAFAB=THE 0.050% 7T 17,000,000
—E-AEFE=ZA=+HNA
23 March 2010 to 22 March 2015 HK$0.117 20,000,000
—E-ZEF=ZH=-+=HZE 0.117% T 20,000,000

—E-RE=R=-+=H
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Number of
share options

outstanding

Categories of grantees Exercise period Exercise price HRITHEZ
KA TER fTHERE WEEsE
Employees and consultants 13 July 2006 to 12 July 2016 HK$0.376 11,027,500
of the Group
rEERERER —EERFLtATZHEE 0.376%& T 11,027,500
—E-RFtA+=H
21 March 2007 to 20 March 2017 HK$0.306 20,833,333
—EELHF=ZA=+—-RE 0.3068 7T 20,833,333
—E-tH¥=ZA=+H
30 September 2009 to 29 March 2019 HK$0.050 102,000,000
“ERERAFAR=ZTRE 0.0503& 7T 102,000,000
—E-NAF=RAZ=tNAH
23 March 2010 to 22 March 2015 HK$0.117 194,000,000
“E-ZHF=ZF-+=HE 0.1178 7T 194,000,000
—E-AF=ZA=+=H
Total &t 480,860,833
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS EENSVHZER

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

During the year ended 31 March 2010, there were no purchases,
sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed securities by the

Company or any of its subsidiaries.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on

a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements and restated as
appropriate, is set out on page 156. This summary does not form

part of the audited financial statements.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the directors and management shareholders (as defined
in the GEM Listing Rules), and their respective associates had any
interest in business which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group, or have or may have any other conflicts of
interest with the Group pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2010 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng who
will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and being

eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

On behalf of the Board

Yung Kwok Leong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2010
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BYREMEE

B H# & # & F % 5

Hodgson Impey Cheng

HLB

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hua Xia
Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 45 to
155, which comprise the consolidated and company statements
of financial position as at 31 March 2010, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flow for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are

reasonable in the circumstances.

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009/2010

31/F, Gloucester Tower BB
The Landmark IR
11 Pedder Street, Central SITH115
Hong Kong B ES
HEETITRE3E
BEEEESEERLAFR2ERE

(REAEHEZMAE L ZBHRLA)

ELCERIBNEBISEISSECEERESE
BERLAB (BLAR]) REKELQE (KB
[BEEE]) 2FEMB®RE  LWHBRREE
R-E-ZF=A=+—-HZHKERAAHE
MRAREBEZALFE2FEEEHEBERE
RERRBEHRNGERERER  UREE
ETBRBER M TRE -

—~

EENFEaMBERRARKENRE

BEARESACERBEESHMASHM2
BEVBRBEAREEQARIZEERE
RHRIEEMAFH2FGEMBEHRR - %E
FRER BREREEEGRREEMQF
ih 2 5 R A M MR 2 AERES) » BUESR
BUBBERAFEHRKFRERMERE
RERRE  BENEAEEZEHEE R
BERIEEEE & ET o




AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as
to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BB RS

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2010 and of the Group’s loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 June 2010
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mEMBMRREK

At 31 March 2010 R=E—FF=A=+—H

2010 2009
—E—-ZF —EENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
M &E TET FHE T
ASSETS gE
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 6 43,438 43,668
Prepaid lease payments FEAEERE 7 32,268 28,989
Investment properties REYE 8 5,586 —
Goodwill [EES 10 788,068 206,585
869,360 279,242
Current assets ) EE
Inventories 7E 13 95,154 3,696
Trade and other receivables EZREMEIK
and deposits REREZE 14 241,136 18,275
Derivative financial instruments TTESMI A 15 96 3
Pledged bank deposits BIRARITER 17,274 5,255
Cash and bank balances BERIBITER 9 59,712 88,506
413,372 115,735
Total assets HEEME 1,282,732 394,977
EQUITY: ;%
Capital and reserves attributable ELTFHER ARG
to the owners of Company BE R R
Share capital N 16 466,423 224,756
Reserves e 237,561 103,067
703,984 327,823
Minority interests PHBRRER 32,858 28,239
Total equity BR®Ba 736,842 356,062

BEEKREBRAF
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SEPBRRER

At 31 March 2010 R=EB—ZFF=A=+—H

2010 2009
—E—-ZF —EENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
M &E TET FHE T
LIABILITIES &\

Current liabilities g =R
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk HMENRIE 18 250,748 30,607
Bank borrowings RITEE 19 47,310 =
Amounts due to minority shareholders — FE{F D BB 3R 2 FIE 20 719 540
Convertible note AR R EE 21 = 6,469
Tax payable P Bi1E 2,254 1,118
301,031 38,734

Long-term liabilities RH&®R
Promissory note EHEE 22 240,482 -
Convertible note CIE:Y 2 21 3,741 =
Deferred taxation R I8 36 636 181
244,859 181
Total liabilities EE#E 545,890 38,915
Total equity and liabilities ERRARER 1,282,732 394,977
Net current assets RODEESE 112,341 77,001
Total assets less current liabilities BERERTDAR 981,701 356,243

Approved by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2010 and signed

on its behalf by:

Yung Kwok Leong
Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
B 7% AR R 3R

At 31 March 2010 R=E—FF=A=+—H

2010 2009
—E—-ZF —EZHE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
M &E TET T
ASSETS HE
Non-current assets ERBDEE
Interests in subsidiaries BB AR 2R 12 112,100 377,011
Current assets mEEE
Prepayment, deposits and EARE - - RER
other receivables Hi W I8 14 382 279
Derivative financial instruments THESBMIT A 15 96 3
Cash and bank balances B RIRITLEER 14,645 26,057
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEW I B A Bl FRIE 12 847,859 71,314
862,982 97,653
Total assets BEME 975,082 474,664
EQUITY: B
Capital and reserves attributable ELFHWAA
to owners of the Company B R R E
Share capital (&S 16 466,423 224,756
Reserves 1 17 233,716 219,611
Total equity HaWE 700,139 444,367
LIABILITIES =K
Current liabilities i I R-Ki
Accruals and other payables FEET & A & H B 518 4,400 550
Financial guarantee contracts BEEREN 3,410 746
Convertible note AR EE 21 = 6,469
Amounts due to subsidiaries M B A B FIE 12 22,274 22,351
30,084 30,116

BEEKREBRAF
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Statement of Financial Position
B 7% AR R 3R

At 31 March 2010 R=EB—ZFF=A=+—H

2010 2009
—E—-ZF —EZHE
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
M &E TET T

Long-term liabilities RHAR
Promissory note A EE 22 240,482 =
Convertible note AR EE 21 3,741 =
Deferred taxation R 36 636 181
244,859 181
Total liabilities AEEEE 274,943 30,297
Total equity and liabilities HERARHBE 975,082 474,664
Net current assets MENEE R E 832,898 67,537
Total assets less current liabilities BEHERTHER 944,998 444,548

Approved by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2010 and signed
on its behalf by:

Yung Kwok Leong Jiang Tao

Director Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
REETHEEBESR

For the year ended 31 March 2010 2= —ZFF=A=+—HILFE

2010 2009
—E—-ZF —EENF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$’ 000
B &E TET FHE T
Turnover EXE 24 179,765 170,087
Cost of sales HERE (115,381) (72,750)
Gross profit EFH 64,384 97,337
Other revenue Htig 2 24 1,337 422
Other income Hfbdg A 25 461 2,085
Selling and distribution expenses HERSHER (22,277) (19,426)
Administrative expenses TR (52,914) (50,416)
Impairment loss on goodwill BERESE 10 (171,422) (202,547)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBLABZEER 35 (23,185) (3,865)
Loss from operations BEEEEE 25 (203,616) (176,410)
Finance costs MEEH 28 (1,297) (1,822)
Loss before taxation FRIREIES IR (204,913) (178,232)
Taxation R\ 29 (1,723) (12,228)
Loss for the year XEEBR (206,636) (190,460)
Other comprehensive income HthZEKA
Exchange differences on translating BEBIMES K
foreign operations ZCERES (201) 7,142
Other comprehensive income TEEHEMBPEKA
for the year, net of tax MERRIA (201) 7,142
Total comprehensive income AXEERME
for the year W A #E (206,837) (183,318)
Dividends BRE 32 - -

BEEKREBRAF
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
GETHESER

For the year ended 31 March 2010 HZ2=—E—ZF=A=1+—HIFE

2010 2009
—E—-ZF —EENF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$’ 000
B &E TET FHE T
Loss attributable to: FE{LESIR -
Owners of the Company EXFEEA (211,283) (200,548)
Minority interests DPHBRRER 4,647 10,088
(206,636) (190,460)
Total comprehensive income BaE2EkA
attributable to: e
Owners of the Company EAFEEA (211,456) (194,110)
Minority interests PHEBERER 4,619 10,792
(206,837) (183,318)
Loss per share attributable to EATIHE AR
owners of the Company BERER
— basic and diluted —HEARKE#E 31  HK (4.40) centsi&fill HK (10.35) centsiE Al

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEMM ARG ESMBRR 2 — B0 °
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REREEDR

For the year ended 31 March 2010 2= —ZFF=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FOFREARE
Share-based  Convertible
Share Share Special Translation ~ payment note  Statutory Accumulated  Minority Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve losses  interests equity
DR
BiRZ K 8
kx RPAE BURE 2 ERER ARERE 2 REEE AERE  RAHER  BREE  HAHR
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TER Thn T T ThR T T T T
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
(H&H(a)) (HzE (o))
At 1 April 2008 WZZEN\ERA-A 89,902 425,169 (6,735) 1,461 4,658 24,693 753 (62,099) 26,682 504,484
Exchange difference on BEBIMNE
translation of financial AABRE
statements of overseas EEZESR
subsidiaries =8 - - - 6,438 - - - - 704 7,14
Net income recognised ERTEREDZ
directly in equity WAFE - - - 6,438 - - = = 704 7,142
Loss for the year rEERE - - - - - - - (200548 10,088 (190,460)
Total comprehensive REEREANAES
income for the year - - - 6,438 - - - (200,548) 10,792 (183,318)
Issue of shares BB 44,95 - - - = = = = - 44,952
Bonus issue of shares BITAR 89,902 (89,902) = = = = = = = =
Increase in minority interests WERB LA
resulting from acquisition BRPOURR
of subsidiaries EREN - - - - - - - - 4,705 4,705
Release upon redemption of REETEREE
convertible note ik - - - - - (20,245) - 19,424 = (821)
Dividend paid EftRE - - - - - - - - (139400 (13940)
Transfer to reserve B)\RE - - - - - - 534 (534) - -
At 31 March 2009 and RZBEAF=A=1-H
1 April 2009 RZEZNEMA-A 224,756 335,267 (6,735) 7,899 4,658 4,448 1,287 (243,757) 28,239 356,062
Exchange difference on RERINE
translation of financial NARERE
statements of overseas EAZESR
subsidiaries =8 - - - (173) - - - - (28) (201)
Net income recognised ERTRREDZ
directly in equity WARR - - - (173) - = = - (28) (201)
Loss for the year TEERR - - - - - - - (1128 4647 (206,636)
Total comprehensive REERANAEE
income for the year = = = (173) = = - ) 4619 (206,837)
Release upon disposal REERBATERR
of subsidiaries - - - (537) - - - - - (537)
Issue of share option BiERE - - - - 5,617 - - - - 5,617
Equity component TEREEZ BRI
of convertible note - - - - - (1,410) - 4,448 - 3,038
Deferred tax related to HRREEGE - - - - - (501) - - - (501)
convertible note BEHE
Share options cancelled RE: ] - - - - (4,045) - - 4,045 - -
Issue of convertible
preference shares BTTRRELR 241,667 338333 - - - - - - - 580,000
At 31 March 2010 RZE-FE=A=1-H 466,423 673,600 (6,735) 7,189 6,230 2,537 1,287 (446,547) 32,858 736,842
EEEEE B R Q7
F H§2009/2010
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GERERERR

For the year ended 31 March 2010 HZ2=—E—ZF=A=1+—HIFE

Notes:

Included in the special reserve amounting to approximately
HK$2,935,000 of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal amount of the shares issued by the Company and the
aggregate amount of the share capital of a subsidiary acquired
pursuant to a group reorganisation in 2001.

The decrease in special reserve amounting to approximately
HK$41,580,000 of the Group represents the difference between
the fair value and the contracted value of consideration shares
paid for acquisition of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March
2007.

The increase in special reserve amounting to approximately
HK$31,910,000 of the Group represents the difference between
the fair value and the contracted value of consideration shares
paid for acquisition of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March
2008.

As stipulated by the relevant PRC laws and regulations, the
subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC shall set
aside 10% of its net profit after taxation for the statutory surplus
reserve fund (except where the reserve balance has reached 50%
of the subsidiaries’ paid-up capital). The reserve fund can only be
used, upon approval by the board of directors and by the relevant
authority, to offset accumulated losses or increase capital.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
REEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2010 2= —ZFF=A=+—HILFE

2010 2009
%% —ZENF
HK$'000 HK$' 000
THERT TET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES #EXBZHR&RE
Loss before taxation BRBLATE 1B (204,913) (178,232)
Adjustments for: AEIER
Interest income AMEWA (532) (422)
Interest expenses FMER X 1,297 1,822
Impairment loss on goodwill BEREESE 171,422 202,547
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BENEERE#E 977 962
Depreciation of property, ME - BER
plant and equipment BERE 11,200 10,629
Fair value change of derivative TEEmI AN THE
financial instruments b= (93) 511
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BER
plant and equipment RE2EE 28 10
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB QR 2 EiE 23,185 3,865
Provision for impairment loss of EZ R EMERKIE
trade and other receivables HEEBERE 489 1,381
Share-based payment expenses URGHAER2AREX 5,617 -
Operating cash inflows before movements EELSEEA
in working capital KEBERA 8,677 43,073
Increase in inventories FEEmn (2,947) (522)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other B 5 RHMERRE
receivables and deposits Riz& (m) md (29,674) 121,373
Decrease in amount due from an associate B EE DR FIERD — 2,999
Decrease in trade and other payables ESREMEMTEBBRD (17,154) (31,274)
Increase in amounts due to L BERRE
minority shareholders FRIEIE B0 255 149
Net cash (used in)/generated % (FA) B
from operations BEFE (40,843) 135,798
Compensation received from vendors BERWE 2HE 7,764 -
Overseas tax paid BT8R IE (1,906) (11,620)
Net cash (used in)/generated from KR (FrA) /g
operating activities BHEFH (34,985) 124,178
EEEEEBEBERAA
FH® 2009/2010
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
GEEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2010 B E=—E2—ZEF=A=+—HI-FE

2010 2009
2% —EENF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
THERT TET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES #REFBHZRALRE
Interest received 2l F £ 532 379
Purchase of property, BEVE BERZE
plant and equipment (7,401) (13,636)
Net cash outflow from acquisition WEHBARI RS
of subsidiaries TR (699) (105,480)
Net cash inflow from disposal HEHBLARZES
of subsidiaries AR 5,484 1,550
Dividend paid ERRE - (13,940)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENE BERK
plant and equipment IREETE] 555 =
Net cash used in investing activities RETBMAREFHE (1,529) (131,127)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEZEHZHERE
Interest paid ENFE (47) (585)
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRM P15 RIE — 44,952
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BB RITERRD 2,076 -
Redemption of convertible note EEIEI_IW’HXTJF (29,000)
Proceeds from new bank loans IBRITERABRIE 6,270 =
Net cash generated from METBMERETHE
financing activities 8,299 15,367
Net (decrease)/increase ReRBeSHEERA (WD)
in cash and cash equivalents B/ne#E (28,215) 8,418
Cash and cash equivalents FMZHeRB&$EER
at the beginning of the year 88,506 78,134
Effect of foreign currency IEERGH 2 HE
exchange rate changes (579) 1,954
Cash and cash equivalents FRZHERACEETE
at the end of the year 59,712 88,506
Analysis of the balances of cash BeRBESETE
and cash equivalents RBRoW
Cash and bank balances BeRBITER 59,712 88,506

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated BEMI M EE R AARE BT IRk 2

financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 28 May 2001 as an exempted company with limited
liability. The shares of the Company are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The registered office
of the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681 GT George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The head office and principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong is located at 19/F., New Wing,
101 King's Road, Hong Kong (with effect from 28 June
2010).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company while
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision
of general hospital services, healthcare and hospital
management services and pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution and pharmaceutical retail chain business in the
PRC.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7% ¥R 3= B &

31 March 2010 ZZ2—ZF=H=+—H

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, of the following new standards, amendments and
interpretations (the “new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
which are effective for the Group’s financial year beginning
on or after 1 April 2009. A summary of the new HKFRSs are
set out as below:

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements
HKAS 20 (Amendment) Accounting for Government Grants and

Disclosure of Government Assistance
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs

HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments)  Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligation Arising on Liquidation

HKAS 38 (Amendment) Intangible Assets

HKAS 40 (Amendment) Investment Properties

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 & Embedded Derivatives

HKAS 39 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

HK(IFRIC) - Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real
Estate

HK(IFRIC) - Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation

HK(IFRIC) - Int 18 Transfer of Assets from Customers

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRS issued in 2008,

except for the amendment to HKFRS 5
that is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRS issued in 2009 in
relation to the amendment to paragraph
80 of HKAS 39

56 Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") — continued

Except as described below, the adoption of the new
and revised HKFRSs has had no material effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
current or prior years.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial
Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised) has introduced terminology changes
(including revised titles for the financial statements)
and changes in the format and content of the financial
statements.

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments
HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that has resulted in a
redesignation of the Group's reportable segments.

Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments (Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosures required
in relation to fair value measurements and liquidity risk. The
Group has not presented comparative information for the
expanded disclosures in accordance with the transitional
provision set out in the amendments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7% ¥R 3= B &

31 March 2010 Z&2—ZFF=H=+—H

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") — continued

Improving Disclosures about Financial

Instruments (Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial

Instruments: Disclosures) — continued

The Group has not early applied the following new and

revised standards, amendments or interpretations that have

been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Amendments to HKFRS 5 as part of
Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2008

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 20097

HKAS 24 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

Related Party Disclosures®
Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements'

BERAHMIOREECTERME
HEEA((FEMBEHERE
Rl —#&
ARERMTABEL Y (FRHE
HEENETREMIR : HEZE
i) -
AEEAHEIEFERT 5 E H (B K
LW T REHITAL - BHURRE -

BEMBERRN (BTX) BEMBRREYFH
ZEIFRR-BENF
BfE BN RRER
LN
REEENFEABRUE
R

53) BRALRE

51) RAREBUBER

BRMBRRER (BTX)

BB 8245 (154
B EEE275 (54

HKAS 28 (Amendment)
HKAS 32 (Amendment)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9

HK(IFRIC) - Int 14

(Amendment)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 17

HK(IFRIC) - Int 19

Investments in Associates'
Classification of Rights Issues*
Eligible Hedged Items!

Additional Exemptions for First-time
Adopters?

Limited Exemption from Comparative
HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
Adopters?

Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment
Transactions?

Business Combinations'

Financial Instruments (relating to the
classification and measurement of
financial assets)’

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement®

Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Equity
holders'

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity
Instruments®

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") — continued

Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments (Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial

Instruments: Disclosures) — continued
L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
and January 1, 2010, as appropriate

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2010

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February
2010

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2011

/ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the
accounting for business combination for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 July, 2009.
The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations will have no material impact on the results
and the financial position of the Group.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"”), which term collectively included Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(the “Interpretations”) issued by the HKICPA, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the applicable disclosure requirements of the
GEM Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing
Rules”).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7% R 3= B &

31 March 2010 Z&2—ZFF=H=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

A summary of significant accounting policies followed by the
Group and the Company in the preparation of the financial
statements is set out below:

Basis of preparation

The measured basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is historical cost convention and modified by the
revaluation of investment properties and derivative financial
instruments, which are carried at fair value.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 March 2010. Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets consist
of the amount of those interests at the date of the original
business combination and the minority’s share of changes in
equity since the date of the combination. Losses applicable
to the minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the
subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the
Group except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation and is able to make an additional investment to
cover the losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the
business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions
for recognition under HKFRS 3 Business Combinations are
recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date, except
for non-current assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, which are
recognised and measured at fair value less costs to sell.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group's
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the
cost of the business combination, the excess is recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is
initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the net
fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised.

3.
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31 March 2010 ZZ2—ZF=H=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES - continued

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January 2006

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary or a jointly
controlled entity for which the agreement date is before 1
January 2006 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the relevant subsidiary or the relevant
jointly controlled entity at the date of acquisition.

For previously, capitalised goodwill arising on acquisitions
of subsidiaries, the Group has discontinued amortisation
from 1 January 2006 onwards, and such goodwill (net of
cumulative amortisation as at 31 December 2006) is tested
for impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication
that the cash generating unit to which the goodwill relates
may be impaired (see the accounting policies below).

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1 January 2006

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary or an
associate for which the agreement date is on or after 1
January 2006 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant
subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Such goodwill is carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary
is presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES - continued

Goodwill - continued

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1 January 2006 —
continued

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition.
A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that financial year.
When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other
assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each assets in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. An impairment loss for goodwill is
not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company in which the Company, directly
or indirectly, controls more than one half of the voting
power; has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies; to appoint or remove the majority of the members
of the board of directors; or to cast majority of votes at the
meetings of the board of directors.

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less any impairment
loss. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

3.

B 7% R MY R

31 March 2010 ZZ2—ZF=H=+—H

FEEMHBRBE &

WE—-E
R-BERF-—HA—HRXZEBNEESL
ZEE—E
RAREEREMS  BREMEEZ

&5 BT FEE A R WE 2z 1 R R s
BEZREBESELEN (HEARE
ELEEN) BIRBEZREELEN
BEREBERPRBTIZEMLERE
RAEEERE - RN RFERET
WRELEHE EoEEE2REEL
BEVERMRFERMUABERE -
ERETELBENUZAIREHEEIRNZE
Uz BREE - &2 EREBENLE LR
BEMIEFZEMLHEZREE -
RERBZECNREE ZREERLH
WHRESETFTZEUHEMLEE -BE
ZEMREBEEERGS2HERER
BR -BEZAFNRESEREIRS
SHEBERBERE -

BrHENBATR CEARbZENE
BETHEFANEEHECEBREHE -

Bt I 22 )
MEARDALAERNEREEFBF
BERAE BEEEMBREERRZ
BH -TEZEREBRABIESTERE
FRESTERRAZHEZLT

ML B 2 RE R AE R AR RE
BIEFTALRQ BT BEAMRRK - B AT
ZEBEHAQNFREWRERREZER
EBH o

7 i
o R

63




64

Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7% R 3= B &

31 March 2010 Z&2—ZFF=H=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyers, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold.

Revenue from provision of hospital service, healthcare and
hospital management service is recognised when the services
are provided.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using effective interest method. When a receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flows discounted at original effective interest rate of
the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount
as interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is
recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the leases transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
straight- line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009/2010

3.

FEEMHBRBE &

e & 52

HEEmcHWBERERRZERRRK
ElHRERERGED - EAKEDAES
B EREREREHE M BIREHE -

RHBERYE BEKRBEREERBZ
Wz T R AR AF SRR RT o

2 WA SRR B ) 5 R R b )
HFED o M REWEROE TR AEEE
$6 BRI R 5 T B - B R
RASARERTAY BEERFIRER
B WEERREE TR SR o
BB 2 8 52 8 A R A
R A o

HE

s ERAEEERTEE RN AR
RR=EETEEA EERIER
MEHE FEHMBAERI BALE
HE -

EEBEER LA
REBEZHSRATLTREEEERR
DESRERGE2EHBEERAER
BARZHREHERELE DT EENR
AEHAHEEEZREE  YERAE
HANBERERIBMAX -




Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES - continued

Leasing - continued

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance assets are recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the
lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges
are charged directly to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into
an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that
the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use
of the property, plant and equipment, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of that asset.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHREEHE-&

66

POLICIES - continued

Property, plant and equipment - continued

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment, using the straight line method, over
their estimated useful lives. The principal annual rates are as

follows:

Building Over the lease terms
Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms
Plant and machinery 20%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment ~ 20% to 33"/, %
Motor vehicles 20%

Office equipment 20%

The gain or loss arising from disposal of an asset is
determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, other costs that have been incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition, is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less all estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES - continued

Impairment of assets (other than goodwill,
intangible assets with indefinite lives)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable and deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Taxation - continued

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the
balance sheet liabilities method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences, and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of the other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to consolidated
statement of comprehensive income except when it relates
to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace. The accounting
policies adopted in respect of each category of financial
assets are set out below.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

FEEMHBRBE &

Financial instruments — continued EMIA-I&
Financial assets — continued MEEE—&
Loans and receivables BEAREKE

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. At the end of each reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses. An impairment loss
is recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed
in subsequent periods when an increase in the asset’s
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses were recognised,
subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment losses reversed do not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment losses not been recognised.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as any of the other
categories under HKAS 39. At the end of each reporting
period subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-sale
financial assets are measured at fair value. Changes in fair
value are recognised in equity, until the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity
is removed from equity and recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Any impairment
losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognised
in consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in subsequent years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Available-for-sale financial assets — continued
Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting
period subsequent to initial recognition. An impairment loss
is recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired. The amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount of the asset
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment losses will not be reversed
in subsequent years.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are
generally classified into other financial liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted in respect of financial liabilities
and equity instruments are set out below.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities and equity — continued

Convertible bond

Convertible bond issued by the Company that contain
both financial liability and equity components are classified
separately in respective liability and equity components
on initial recognition. On initial recognition, the fair
value of the liability component is determined using the
prevailing market interest of similar non-convertible debts.
The difference between the proceeds of the issue of the
convertible bond and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, respecting the embedded call option for the
holder to convert the bond into equity, is included in equity
(convertible note reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bond is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
represented by the option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible note reserve until the embedded option is
exercised (in which case the balance stated in convertible
note reserve will be transferred to share capital and share
premium). Where the option remains unexercised at the
expiry date, the balance stated in convertible note reserve
will be released to the retained profits. No gain or loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bond are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the proceeds. Transactions
costs relating to the equity component are charged directly
to convertible note reserve. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bond using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities and equity — continued

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the original or
modified terms of debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Company and not designed as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair
value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the issue of the financial guarantee contract.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets
are transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities are removed from the Group'’s
consolidated statement of financial position when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid or payable is recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

3.

B 7% R MY &

31 March 2010 Z&E—ZF=H=+—H

FEEMHBRBE &

EMIR-&
MERRREF &
BRETA

AATDBTZBRAIAERE WREBEHR
BT

MERESH
BRERENVEREEEHAKRERE
BT Az RASEE BRI RS -
BROTETXNEESRGEEANGEE
HMESBAZEN -AATFAEHAR
TARBAFEBBERDIRZMEE
RENEBRUDXFERBMBITHBERERS
WeEERLEXZBRER -

HH TR
EREEVHBRETREZENCHE
AMBEECEERAEECTKERY
BEERFRZEBANORARRERE
% B BEERRBUEER - REUEHE
RUMBEER  EEREESRACDKIAK
BERECEERRAEZBEI 2RER
ZBMzEZ8 BRESZEWERSD
R o

REBENZBEEERHER  BUEH
AW MBRAEERAEEZFANE
MR T T HIR - BUB R 2 BB ER
HEHESNHENREZZEBDIRES
EEWBHERTER

7 i
o R




74

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R M R

31 March 2010 =&

~FF=A=1-A

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Foreign currencies

i

Ii.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the companies now comprising the Group are
measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the company operates (the
“functional currency”). The combined financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which
is the functional and presentation currency of the

Company and the Group.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities are reported as part of their fair
value gain or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the companies
now comprising the Group (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

(@) Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing
rate;

(b) Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates; and

(c)  All resulting exchange differences are recognised
as a separate component of equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Foreign currencies — continued

iii.  Group companies — continued
On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
operations, and of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such investments,
are taken to owners’ equity. When a foreign operation
is sold, exchange differences that were recorded in
equity are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as part of the gain or loss on
sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.

Current assets and liabilities

Current assets are expected to be realised within twelve
months of the end of the reporting period or in the normal
course of the Group’s operating cycle. Current liabilities are
expected to be settled within twelve months of the end of
the reporting period or in the normal course of the Group’s
operating cycle.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events that
is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES - continued

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

- continued

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flow,
cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash in hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the
effect of the time value of money is material, the amount of
a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES - continued
Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave
passage and the cost to the Group of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the period in which the
associated services are rendered by employees of the
Group. Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts are stated
at their present values.

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as
required under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance and to the state-managed
retirement benefits schemes for the employees of the
Group's overseas entities are recognised as an expense
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as incurred.

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Share-based payment expenses

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The
fair value is measured at the grant date using the
binominal lattice model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the share
options, the total estimated fair value of share options
is spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the options will vest.
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31 March 2010 Z&2—ZFF=H=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES - continued

Employee benefits — continued
iv.  Share-based payment expenses — continued

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of share options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account)
or the option expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interests and other costs incurred in
connection with the borrowing of funds. All borrowing costs
are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in the period in which the costs are incurred.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group'’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES - continued

Segment reporting - continued

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type of class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.

Investment properties
Investment properties are completed properties which are
held for their investment potential, any rental income being
negotiated at arm’s length.

From 1 January 2009, investment properties under
construction have been accounted for in the same way as
completed investment properties. Specifically, construction
costs incurred for investment properties under construction
are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the
investment properties under construction. Investment
properties under construction are measured at fair value at
the end of the reporting period. Any difference between the
fair value of the investment properties under construction
and their carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Prior to 1 January 2009,
the leasehold land and building elements of investment
properties under construction were accounted separately;
the leasehold land element was accounted for as an
operating lease and the building element was measured at
cost less impairment losses, if any.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the consolidated income statement in the year in which the
item is derecognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7% 3R 3= B &

31 March 2010 Z&2—ZFF=H=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial
assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as
a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below
its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

(b) default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

(c) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period of 7 to 90 days, observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued
For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the

impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss
is recognised directly in equity. For available-for-sale
debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed if an increase in the fair value of the investment
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

3.

B 7% R MY &

31 March 2010 Z&E—ZF=H=+—H

FEEMHBRBE &

MBRERE-&
RERATIRZMBEEMS - BEBE
CHENDEERBEEMGTRRESRT
AN ENREMEZBNESE MR
RBRBYHREEZREMBEHRER -
ZREBRETIEETRABERE -

FEVMBEEZREBESEERYE
BEZIREEDFEHIR - HEE 2 RUK
RSN R WA REESEBR
BRELIR - BERAZKREESDHE
REBZTER -EEZEWHERRS
FAWEE - REERAME - £RIE
MESHRRMERKE - EBREEER o

HEBEBHEAATEZHBEEMNS
BEBEERBRYPBERED  mE
AR EEB L RERREBREEE
ZENHAR MENCRAZBESSE
EEBBEETUERD  EZREERR
ERBOERZRAETSEREER
REEZRECBERA -

AHHERAREZREBETENH
BREEEESARO - RMEBFBEEAYT
ERNEMEMEEEREDRER - BT
HREEEBREMS  MZAEAREZLD
FESNEH LEBIANESRER 2R
—EMEKBE  REBBSRAERED -

7 i
Er gl




Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7% 3R 3= B &

31 March 2010 Z&2—ZFF=H=+—H

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
which are described in note 3, management has made
certain key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that may have a significant risk in causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below:

(a) Estimated impairment of goodwiill

The Group performs annual tests on whether there
has been impairment of goodwill in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in note 3. The recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units are determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates and assumptions made
by management on the future operation of the
business, pre-tax discount rates, and other assumptions
underlying the value-in-use calculations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

(b)

(c)

Impairment of trade receivables

The aged debt profile of trade debtors is reviewed
on a regular basis to ensure that the trade debtor
balances are collectible and follow up actions are
promptly carried out if the agreed credit periods have
been exceeded. However, from time to time, the
Group may experience delays in collection. Where
recoverability of trade debtor balances are called into
doubts, specific provisions for bad and doubtful debts
are made based on credit status of the customers,
the aged analysis of the trade receivable balances and
write-off history. Certain receivables may be initially
identified as collectible, yet subsequently become
uncollectible and result in a subsequent write-off of
the related receivable to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Changes in the collectability
of trade receivables for which provisions are not made
could affect our results of operations.

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the
useful lives of property, plant and equipment in order
to determine the amount of depreciation expenses to
be recorded. The useful lives are estimated at the time
the asset is acquired based on historical experience, the
expected usage, wear and tear of the assets, as well
as technical obsolescence arising from changes in the
market demands or service output of the assets. The
Group also perform annual reviews on whether the
assumptions made on useful lives continue to be valid.
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Bt 7% 3R 3= B &

31 March 2010 Z&2—ZFF=H=+—H

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

(d) Impairment of non-current assets

If a triggering event occurs indicating that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable, an
assessment of the carrying amount of that asset will
be performed. Triggering events include significant
adverse changes in the market value of an asset,
changes in the business or regulatory environment, or
certain legal events. The interpretation of such events
requires judgment from management with respect
to whether such an event has occurred. Upon the
occurrence of triggering events, the carrying amounts
of non-current assets are reviewed to assess whether
their recoverable amounts have declined below their
carrying amounts. The recoverable amount is the
present value of estimated net future cash flows which
the Group expects to generate from the future use of
the asset, plus the assets residual value on disposal.
Where the recoverable amount of non-current assets
is less than its carrying value, an impairment loss is
recognised to write the assets down to its recoverable
amount.

(e) Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in different
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for income tax. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. The
outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

(f)

(9)

(h)

Measurement of convertible note

On issuance of convertible note, the fair value of
the liability component is determined using a market
rate for an equivalent non-convertible note; and
this amount is carried as a long term liability on the
amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion
or redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is
allocated to the conversion option that is recognised
and included in the convertible note reserve, net of
transaction costs. The splitting of the liability and
equity components requires an estimation of the
market interest rate.

Measurement of fair value of equity-settled
transactions

The Company operates share option schemes under
which employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payment transactions. The cost of these equity-settled
transactions with employees is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are granted,
using assumptions including expected volatility and
risk free interest rate. Such cost is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest.

Measurement of promissory note

The fair value of promissory note is determined using
an estimated interest rate and the amount is carried on
amortised cost basis until extinguished or redemption.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 Operating Segments with
effect from 1 April 2009. HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard
that requires operating segments to be identified on the
basis of internal reports about components of the Group
that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of allocating resources to segments
and assessing their performance. In contrast, the predecessor
standard (HKAS 14 Segment Reporting) required an entity to
identify two sets of segments (business and geographical),
using a risks and returns approach. In the past, the Group's
primary reporting segment was geographical segment. The
adoption of HKFRS 8 has resulted in a redesignation of the
Group’s reportable segments as compared with the primary
reportable segments determined in accordance with HKAS
14.

The Group organised into three operating divisions: provision
of general hospital services, provision of healthcare and
hospital management services, pharmaceutical wholesale
and distribution and pharmaceutical retail chain business.
These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its
segment information.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 5. BEH &
Segment revenue and results SRR RR
2010 —E—-ZF

Pharmaceutical

Provision of ~ wholesale and
healthcare distribution and
Provision of ~ and hospital  pharmaceutical

general hospital ~ management retail chain
services services business Others Eliminations  Consolidated
ENRERAY
RitGaH RUEEER  HUREWESE
ERRE BREERE EHEEE Eft Ha ]
HK$" 000 HKS$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TET FTET T#T TET TET TET
Turnover EXE
External sales HMEE 125,360 1,550 52,855 - - 179,765
Inter-segment sales AREHE - - - - - -
Total turnover g 125,360 1,550 52,855 - - 179,765
Inter-seqment sales are charged 2 BEHENR
atam’s length AYRENE
Results 1]
Seqment results PEXE (162,19) (1,630) 3,070 - - (160,756)
Unallocated other revenue ARz RN 419
Unallocated other income AOBZERRA 230
Unallocated corporate expenses AABZEERL (20,324)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENBARZEE (23,185)
Loss from operations Re£HER (203,616)
Finance costs HEER (1,297)
Loss hefore taxation REAEE (204,913)
Taxation #aE (1,723)
Loss for the year rEEEER (206,636)
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 5. PEEHE &
Segment assets and liabilities STHREERAR
2010 —E—ZF

Pharmaceutical

Provision of  wholesale and
healthcare distribution and

Provision of and hospital  pharmaceutical
general hospital management retail chain
services services business Eliminations Consolidated
Ensaro8
R’itEaH REERR WRENSE
Bk BERERRE EHERE af | w8
HK$" 000 HK$’ 000 HKS' 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000
TET TET TE#T TET TET
Consolidated statement of GaMBRAE
financial position
Assets RE
Segment assets PHEE 96,357 4,884 1,120,907 - 1,222,148
Unallocated corporate assets RO L EERE 60,584
Consolidated total assets GRERMGE 1,282,732
Liabilities A
Segment liabilities PE8E 13,664 406 278,934 - 293,004
Promissory note RAER 240,482
Convertible note TEREE 3,14
Deferred taxation BEHE 636
Unallocated corporate liabilities LAl 3T 8,027
Consolidated total liabilities GREEER 545,890
Other segment information Htt S EEH
Pharmaceutical
Provision of  wholesale and
healthcare  distribution and
Provision of and hospital  pharmaceutical
general hospital management retail chain
services services business Unallocated Consolidated
EntaRa8
REtEaH RUEERR NRENSE
BRR% BREERE ERERE b3 ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$" 000
TET TET THET TET THET
Other information EtEs
Capital expenditure EXER 7,018 361 2 - 7,401
Depreciation e 9,751 189 200 1,060 11,200
Amortisation of prepaid BAREFEHH
lease payments 967 - 10 - 977
Loss on disposal of property, HENE  BER
plant and equipment B 28 - - - 28
Provision for impairment loss EAREMERFERE
of trade and other receivables BERE 489 - - - 489
Impairment loss on goodwil BEAERE 171,422 - - - 171,422
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SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 5. HEEHEH B
Segment revenue and results SHBEERER
2009 —ETNE
Pharmaceutical
Provision of wholesale and
healthcare  distribution and
Provision of and hospital pharmaceutical
general hospital management retail chain
services services business Others Consolidated
EMHER D
RELGEH RUEER NRENEE
BIRRE ERERRE BHEEER Hft e
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TiEn THERL Thx TR ThER
Turnover EXE
External sales HIMEE 155,719 14,368 - - 170,087
Inter-segment sales PEEEE - - - - -
Total turover BEXE 155,719 14,368 - - 170,087
Inter-segment sales are charged PERHENR
at am’s length AFHEKRE
Results F1
Segment results EE (155,690) (1,429) - - (157,118)
Unallocated other revenue KBz E M E 422
Unallocated other income RAEZEMUA 2,085
Unallocated corporate expenses RABMzLEXH (17,934)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENBARZER (3,865)
Loss from operations RefkER (176,410)
Finance costs BHER (1,822)
Loss before taxation BHAER (178,232)
Taxation BE (12,228)
Loss for the year rEERR (190,460)
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 5. SEEH &
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERAR
2009 —EBhE

Pharmaceutical

Provision of wholesale and
healthcare  distribution and

Provision of and hospital pharmaceutical
general hospital management retail chain
services services business Others Consolidated
ENHERDE
Ritgat RUBER DRENZE
BRRE  BRERRY BHEXHK Aft &8
HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TER TERL TER TEn TEn
Consolidated statement of GEMBRAE
financial position
Assets RE
Segment assets PEEE 315,218 37,768 - - 352,986
Unallocated corporate assets RIBZLEEE 41,991
Consolidated total assets GABEAR 394,977
Liabilities af
Segment liabilties TBER 26,516 577 = = 27,093
Convertible note TRREE 6,469
Deferred taxation BLSE 181
Unallocated corporate liabilities ARz LEEE 5,172
Consolidated total liabilities GABEAR 38,915
Other segment information Htt S REH
Pharmaceutical
Provision of wholesale and
healthcare  distribution and
Provision of and hospital pharmaceutical
general hospital management retail chain
services services business Others Consolidated
EMHERDE
Ritman RURER NRENEE
BRRE  BRERRE BHESHK Hfth Ga
HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
THT TR TER ThER ThER
Other information H &
Capital expenditure ERFX 10,679 482 - 2,475 13,636
Depreciation ik 9,473 152 - 1,004 10,629
Amortisation of prepaid BAREFEHH
lease payments 962 - - - 962
Loss on disposal of property, HENE  BER
plant and equipment RELER - 10 - - 10
Provision for impairment loss A RHMENFERNE
of trade and other receivables BERA 1,381 - - - 1,381
Impairment loss on goodwil BEHESE 202,547 - - - 202,547
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SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Segment results represent the profit/(loss) generated by
each segment without allocation of finance costs, loss on
disposal of subsidiaries and taxation. This is the measure
reported to the chief operating decision maker for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
measurement.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong
and PRC. The following table provides an analysis of the
Group’s turnover by geographical market, irrespective of the
origin of the goods/services:

B 7% R M &

31 March 2010 Z&—ZF=H=+—H

DHREHE-E
PEEBERDBEEZER (B
B)  THRUBER HEWBELFZ
BARBEZ IR - LIRERSER
SPERAFEATBEBREERE
H.

wESRH
AEBZEBETEVREBRTE T
RERARE 2 EXBRMBEN S (TW
B R ZRIR) 2 DH

Turnover by
geographical market

BUETBZEXSE
2010 2009
—E—5F —EENF
HKS$’ 000 HK$' 000
FET FET
Hong Kong Bk - -
PRC 2205 179,765 170,087
179,765 170,087

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-
current assets (excluding deferred tax assets and derivative
financial instrument) analysed by the geographical area in
which the assets are located:

UTAREEMEEES M ZFRBDEE
(TEREEEREEERITEEHIA)
ZREED A

Carrying amount
of non-current assets*

nBDEEZREE
2010 2009
—E—-25F —EZNEF
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
THET FExT
Hong Kong BH 1,734 2,286
PRC E 867,626 276,956
869,360 279,242
& Non-current assets excluding financial instruments and & FRBEETEEEMITARELERE

deferred tax assets.

AE-
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6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

6. MK -HERRE

The Group x5
Furniture  Leasehold Machinery and Motor Office

Building  and fixtures improvements  equipment vehicles  equipment Total

BF GARRE HENERE HEREG RE BOERG #it

HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000

Tin THR ThER TR TiEn TiEn TiEn
Cost 723
At 1 April 2008 RZEENENA-A 4,802 2,855 11,325 18,862 4,59 3,839 46,279
Additions HE - 69 2916 5,619 3,288 1,744 13,636
On acquisition of subsidiaries ~ WEKBAR = 17 1,219 5,438 775 1,090 8,509
Disposals of subsidiaries HEWBAR = = (1.247) (946) - (174) (2,367)
Exchange difference EXEE 548 299 1,021 1,556 479 206 4,129
Disposals HE - (1) - - - = (12)
At 31 March 2009 and R-ZENE=R=1-A
1 April 2009 RZEENEMA-R 5,350 3228 15,204 30,529 9,138 6,725 70,264
Additions e - 57 3205 3348 352 419 7401
On acquisition of subsidiaries ~ WEBKBA R - = 2613 = 2376 12,507 17,49
Disposals of subsidiaries HEWBAT - (30) (2,426) (9,336) (1,022) (1,358) (14.172)
Exchange difference ERER 31 18 84 174 38 29 374
Disposals HE - - - (764) - - (764)
At 31 March 2010 RZZ-35ZRZ+-H 5,381 3273 18,790 23,951 10,882 18,322 80,599
Depreciation and impairment &R #{E
At 1 April 2008 RZEENENA-H 175 1,052 2,828 7115 1371 2320 14,861
On acquisition of subsidiaries ~ WEMBAR - 1 306 392 31 75 805
Disposals of subsidiaries HENBLF - - (538) (375) = (64) (977)
Provided for the year REERM 161 628 1916 5,400 1,565 959 10,629
Written back on disposals HERED - ) - - - = 0
Exchange difference ERZS 19 102 254 709 87 109 1,280
At 31 March 2009 RZBEAE=A=1-R 355 1,781 4,766 13,241 3,054 3399 26,59
On acquisition of subsidiaries ~ WEKEBAT - - 865 - 466 2,974 4,305
Disposals of subsidiaries HERBAF - 9) (428) (3.359) (663) (441) (4,900)
Provided for the year REERE 161 523 2179 5,780 1,610 947 11,200
Written back on disposals HERED = - - (181) = = (181)
Exchange difference ERER 2 10 25 75 14 15 141
At 31 March 2010 RZE-Z£ZAZ+-H 518 2,305 7,407 15,556 4,481 6,894 37,161
Net book values BERE
At 31 March 2010 RZ2-3£ZAZ+-H 4,863 968 11,383 8,395 6,401 11,428 43,438
At 31 March 2009 RZBENE=A=1-R 4,995 1447 10,528 17,288 6,084 3326 43,668

The building was held outside Hong Kong

term lease.

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
Report 2009/2010
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PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 7. AAHERREA
The Group
F%E
2010 2009
—E—-ZF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
TH#T FET
The Group's prepaid lease payments AEEFRNEERBEE
comprise:
Land outside Hong Kong under BBREIAFEBELY
medium term lease BEEz i 33,394 29,961
Analysed for reporting purposes as: fERSRAZ 2 DM ¢
Current assets (include in trade and nBEE(BRERESZR
other receivables and deposits) HEWRIERIZS) 1,126 972
Non-current assets FRBERE 32,268 28,989
33,394 29,961
At 31 March 2010, prepaid lease payments with a carrying R-Z—ZF=A=+—8H " EEE@%’\J
amount of approximately HK$3,709,000 have been pledged 3,709,000 T 2 A HEREEHRETE T
to secure credit facilities granted to an independent third —EBUE=ZF2EEREHIER -
party.
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 8. HBEMX
The Group
r. 34 |
2010 2009
—E—-ZF —EEhEF
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
TH#T THExT
Completed investment properties ERIREME 5,586 =
2010 2009
—E—FF —EENF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TH#T THExT
At fair value BROFE
At 1 April ROEUA—H - -
On acquisition of subsidiaries sz B Fff B8 A &) 5,586 =
Gain/(loss) on property revaluation MESH W (BE) - =
At 31 March R=A=+—8H 5,586 -

gl
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31
March 2010 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out at that date by Messrs. BMI Appraisals Limited,
independent qualified professional valuers not connected to
the Group. The valuation was arrived at on the open market
basis.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals are measured using the fair value
model and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

REMR-#E
AEBZRENENR-F-FF=A
S+ -BZAVEDREEAEELE
BAE 2 B Y A E M S A5 E A R A 3B 28
AR REST 2 MG EMEE - HE
JRE-INGIEE S0 il

AEERBELHEFHURRAS Y
AZHBYE*RBIRA LI FERA
B UEBERSFAREYE -

The carrying amount of investment properties shown above tiiREYXZREERRE :
comprises:
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EEAEF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
THRT FERT
Land outside Hong Kong: BEBEMZ L
Medium-term lease REFEA 5,586 =

At 31 March 2010, investment properties with a carrying
amount of approximately HK$5,586,000 have been pledged
to secure credit facilities granted to an independent third

party.

For the year ended 31 March 2010, property rental income
earned during the year was approximately HK$19,000. The
property held had committed tenants for the next five years.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group contracted

R-ZE—ZE=ZA=+—0 ' REEY
5,586,000 T 2 REMEEHRERT— B
BAURE=F2EEEHIEKM -

BE—ZE—EFE=A=t+—HLEE i
BRELZMEBR S WAL E19,0008 7T °
FiEEZMERARREEHERFRE
AR o RIREHR  AEEEAFTNZ

with tenants for the following future minimum lease ARREEWBSINT :
receivables:

2010 2009
—E—Z5F —EENEFE
HK$’' 000 HK$' 000
T#xT F8&T
Within one year —FR 235 =
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EZERF (BREEEWE) 403 =
638 -

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
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CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Notes to the Financial Statements
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31 March 2010 Z&E—ZF=H=+—H

9. HeRBITHE

As at 31 March 2010, the cash and bank balances of R-B—ZBF=F=+—H0  xEEz}H
the Group included currencies denominated in Renminbi SRETEHEEUARE [ARK])
("RMB") amounted to approximately HK$49,334,000 (2009: sTE B #449,334,0008 c (=ZBEE N
HK$54,032,000) which is not freely convertible into other £ 154,032,000 L) 2E#  EF- A H
currencies. HEigAsHME -
GOODWILL 10. Eo &
The Group
*TKE
HK$'000
FHE T
Cost B#F
At 1 April 2008 R-ZZEZENFEMA—H 330,263
Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries FRAWBHEBRARESE
during the year 114,945
Disposal of subsidiaries S E L A (3,865)
At 31 March 2009 and 1 April 2009 R-BZEREF=RA=+T—H
R-ZZENRFHA—H 441,343
Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries FRAWBHERAREE
during the year 785,169
Adjustment to consideration (Note (b)) RERE (K D)) (7,764)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEME AT (24,500)
At 31 March 2010 R-Z-—ZFF=A=+—H 1,194,248
Impairment i =
At 1 April 2008 R=ZEZENFNA—H 32,211
Impairment loss recognised ERR B EEE 202,547
At 31 March 2009 and 1 April 2009 R-ZBEZEAF=ZRA=1+—H
R-ZBEARFHTHA—H 234,758
Impairment loss recognised ERAREEIE 171,422
At 31 March 2010 R-ZE-Z2F=ZA=t+—H 406,180
Carrying value REE
At 31 March 2010 R-Z—2F=A=1+—H 788,068
At 31 March 2009 R-ZEZBAF=ZA=1+—H 206,585
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10. GOODWILL - continued 10. B8 @

Notes: B &

(@) At the end of reporting period, the Group assessed the (@) MRBHEHR FAEEFEEBE2AR
recoverable amount of goodwill, and determined that £ %8 I E A K E L P E R MR
goodwill associated with the Group’s provision of general EUHERNREERE2EEE RE
hospital and healthcare services in PRC was impaired by #171,422,0008 T (ZEZE N F ¢
approximately HK$171,422,000 (2009: HK$202,547,000). 202,547,000/ 7T) ° ¥ 2 AT E £ 5
The recoverable amount of the operations was assessed by N2EFEREBEELMG - EREBERE
reference to value in use. A discount factor of 9.71% per AP RAEEIT 1% ZITERF

annum was applied in the value in use model.

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are BB ERERNR BRI RRNMT
disclosed in Note 11 to the financial statements. FIFHIRE °

(b)  During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group received by REBEE=Z—ZFE=ZF=+-—-HLHE
cash compensation of approximately HK$7,764,000 from B AEERBEEERZ A BESRMD
vendors under profit guarantee pursuant to the sales and B E 5 WELK7,764,0005% T 2 H & @
purchase agreements. & -

11. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL 11. 78R E AR

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill set out in BRERAENS  ME10B2EED

Note 10 has been allocated to the following cash generating TERETIREELEN -R-F-F

units (CGUs). The carrying amount of goodwill (net of F=ZRA=1T—H BEZREE(NRKRR

accumulated impairment losses) as at 31 March 2010 is FHRERE) P BNT

allocated as follows:

The Group
£EME
2010 2009
—E—FF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FHET T
Provision of general hospital services AP B3R A 4R & 1 B8 B AR 75
in PRC 2,899 206,585
Pharmaceutical wholesale RAPE 2 ZEYHE 3 K 2 85
and distribution and pharmaceutical DR EY S EEHEE
retail chain business in PRC ¥ 785,169 =
788,068 206,585
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11. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

- continued

Provision of general hospital services in PRC

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management and
a discount rate of 9.71% per annum. Cash flow projections
during the budgeted period are based on the same expected
gross margins throughout the budget period. The cash
flows beyond the budgeted period have been extrapolated
using a steady 3% per annum growth rate by reference to
market rate. This growth rate does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the market. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions
on which recoverable amount is based would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of this CGU. Management determined
the budgeted gross margin based on past performance and
its expectations for the market development.

Pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution and
pharmaceutical retail chain business in PRC

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management and
a discount rate of 9.63% per annum. Cash flow projections
during the budgeted period are based on the same expected
gross margins throughout the budget period. The cash
flows beyond the budgeted period have been extrapolated
using a steady 3% per annum by reference to market rate.
This growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the market. Management believes that
any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions
on which recoverable amount is based would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of this CGU. Management determined
the budgeted gross margin based on past performance and
its expectations for the market development.

B 7% R MY &

31 March 2010 Z&E—ZF=H=+—H

1. BEREINR &

RpE R G SN ERES
FREELEU AT REESEREME
REEE]  MEABEERBEEEREM
WEZHMBEEERSH2REREAR -
URITERGFI71%:THE - HEHMRZ
BenE8ER NDEREEREHRANME
BzEAENRAE BEHRZRE
REBAIZZEMENRIBNZBREFER
REF - UBERRIFBEBHEZRY
FIRRE - BEEEMARE  AETWEE
BB C2EABRITEHRE S ES
B FfEEYAREELENZRERL
BEEBAHAWEESHEAE EEERE
BAXRRKHEST SRR 2ENERR
EEREK-

RPBEZEMLRRIBLURENS
EERERY
FEETELEBENZARESEIREE
REEET]  MEABERBEEEREMN
MEZHBEEEMSH2BRSREAR -
URITEERSF9.63%:1H - AEHRZ
RengEll NDEREEREHRAME
BeRAENRHE HEHRZRE
REAZZMEFNRIB%NZREFER
REH WBRXITEBTEZRY
FI9ERE - EEEMARE  SAIETWES
BAEBCEABRAUIEHRAZSES
B o rAEEAREELENUCRER
EEBHTKREEHELE EEERE
BAEXRRAKAEBT SRR 2FUER
BEER=R-

7 i
o R
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12. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 12. R ATRIZCHER
The Company
ENF

2010 2009
—E—ZF —EENF
HK$’' 000 HK$'000
TET THExT
Unlisted shares, at costs FEmRM o BRAE 376,265 376,265
Less: Impairment loss recognised W BEERREEE (267,575) =
108,690 376,265
Financial guarantee contract MEEREHN 3,410 746
112,100 377,011

The advance to a subsidiary is unsecured, interest free and
has no fixed terms of repayment.

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

The carrying amounts of the investment in subsidiaries are
reduced to their recoverable amounts which are determined
by reference to the estimation of future cash flows expected
to be generated from the respective subsidiaries.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March
2010 are set out in Note 43 to the consolidated financial

B—EHEA ARG 2ERDERT -
REREBEERY -

FEd, (B MBARREREER
REREBEERY -

R DBIRE 2 BREE T MU = &7
WEEE mAREeHESRAHE
EMEAREEZMARRREREM
BE -

ARARE—FF=F=+—Hz=E
EMEARFBENGEMBHRERME

statements. 43 o
13. INVENTORIES 13. &8
The Group
XEMH

2010 2009
—2-BF C—BENF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
T#ET FHE T
Finished goods SURK 95,154 3,696
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14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 14. B REMBERKRERRSE
DEPOSITS
The Group The Company
*TEHE r: /N

2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-TF —EZTE2NF ZB—BF —ZEZNF
HK$' 000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000
THET FET THET FExT
Trade receivables 2 5 EWFEE 126,226 2,135 = =
Deposits paid g2ffiEs 181 181 170 170
Prepayments FEATFRIE 30,429 13,228 162 108
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERE 1,126 972 - =
Other receivables H {th & W R IE 83,174 1,759 50 1
241,136 18,275 382 279
Payment terms with customers from the pharmaceutical ANREEHEYMBRESHEUREYEE
wholesale and distribution and pharmaceutical retail chain BHEHEEREFPI N2 RARTES
business are mainly on credit. Invoices are normally payable TR - BE—RAENZEE HEIE30
from 30 to 90 days of issuance. Payment terms with Z0HRZA - AEBEEEFSHEER N
customers from general hospital and healthcare and hospital FEENEREEEREERSI L 24
management services are normally payable from 0 to 30 FR—BRBROZEIOHARZT - L TAER

days. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables REHR S S ERRIEIRR 04 -

at the end of the reporting period:

The Group
x5E

2010 2009
—E—Z5 —EENF
HK$’' 000 HK$' 000
THET FE T
0 to 90 days 0Z290H 116,670 1,382
91 to 180 days 91£180H 7,217 542
181 to 365 days 1812365H 985 106
Over 365 days H#i@365H 3,447 1,701
128,319 3,731
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts o REREE (2,093) (1,596)
126,226 2,135
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14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

DEPOSITS - continued

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts which

are past due at the end of the reporting period but against

which the Group has not recognised an allowance for

doubtful receivables because there has not been a significant

change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered

recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or other

credit enhancements over these balances nor does it have a

legal right of offset against any amounts owed by the Group

to the counterparty.

14. RERAMBERREREE -

i
EXBBECERBEZRERERREH
R AR 38 H3 B 25 5 ] 30 4 bt R AR UK
HRERREBEHEZNE  FEAEBEFNIA
ZEEERNBEEREHIRBND AR
B o AREE IR I EERITFHEME
HARREMEEMRER  FEETHE
NAUAEEERRGEF 2 EMRE
fE¥Es -

Ageing of past due but not impaired C i HA{B 3 % i {E o IR 62
2010 2009
—Z-TF —ETAE
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TERT TET
Overdue by: [Eup: e
1 to 90 days 1£90H 7,217 542
91 to 180 days 912180H 985 106
Over 180 days HEiE180H 1,354 105
Total Sy 9,556 753
Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts RIERRZEH
The Group
%KM@
2010 2009
—E—-TF —EETNE
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
THERT FET
At 1 April REUA—H 1,596 215
Exchange realignment AR 8 _
Impairment losses recognised on 2 1t FE YR IE T R
receivables ZEEE B 489 1,381
At 31 March R=A=+-—8H 2,093 1,596

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009/2010




Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7% ¥R 3% B &

31 March 2010 Z&E—ZF=H=+—H

14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 14. B REMEBEKRRBERERE —
DEPOSITS - continued B
Ageing of impaired trade receivables ERERSERREZRE
The Group
EEE
2010 2009
-5 —EThE
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FBT T3¢
Over 365 days HiE365H 2,093 1,596
15. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 15. ST4E&mTH
The Group and the Company FEERELT

Redemption
option contract

BORESH
HK$’ 000
FE T
At 1 April 2008 R-ZEZENFNA—H 514
Fair value changes NEEEZH (511)
At 31 March 2009 and 1 April 2009 R-IBEERNEFE=ZA=Z+—HK
—EENFMA—H 3
Fair value changes NEEEZEH 93
At 31 March 2010 R-E—ZEF=H=+—H 96
Notes: B &E -
The fair values of derivative financial instruments are estimated PTHESMI A AFEIIERAME DR —EFEET
using Black-Scholes option pricing model. MEEEENGHE -
ZEEEEEEAERALQEA 107
F H§2009/2010
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16. SHARE CAPITAL 16. B¢ &
Number of share Amount
BR&E &
HK$' 000
FER
Authorised: EE:
Ordinary shares EEK
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each BREME0.SE T ZEER
—at 1 April 2008 -RZEENFEHA—H 5,000,000,000 250,000
— increase in authorised share capital —RE BRI
(Note (a)) (Btzz () 5,000,000,000 250,000
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each BREME0.SE T ZEER
— at 31 March 2009 and 1 April 2009 -RZEZNF=A=+—H
E—ZZEAFTA—H 10,000,000,000 500,000
— increase in authorised share capital —EERAIE N
(Note (b)) (KtzEob)) 12,000,000,000 600,000
—at 31 March 2010 -R=ZE2-ZF=A=+—-H 22,000,000,000 1,100,000
Non-voting convertible preference shares — #ERZFE R ELK
Non-voting convertible preference shares S REE0.058B T2 ERERE
of HK$0.05 each R R R
—at 1 April 2008, 31 March 2009 -R=ZZENEWMA—AH -
and1 April 2009 —EENF=ZRA=1—H
E=—EZHhFENA-—H - -
— increase in authorised share capital —EERAE M
(Note (b)) (BtzEmb)) 8,000,000,000 400,000
- at 31 March 2010 -RZE2-ZFF=A=+-—H 8,000,000,000 400,000
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. SHARE CAPITAL - continued 16. B & — iR
Number of share Amount
Bin&E &
HK$' 000
TET
Issued and fully paid: ERTRME :
Ordinary shares EEK
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each BREESETZEAR
—at 1 April 2008 -RZEZENENA—H 1,798,044,795 89,902
— issue of new shares on subscription -MARBEMBTHR
(Note (c)) (HzE(c) 899,022,397 44,952
— bonus issue of shares (Note (c)) —BTAR (Ha(c) 1,798,044,794 89,902
- at 31 March 2009, 1 April 2009 -R-EEANF=A=+—H"
and 31 March 2010 —ZZAFMA—-HR
—Z2-Z¥=H=+—-H 4,495,111,986 224,756
Non-voting convertible preference shares BREETERELR
Non-voting convertible preference shares BREMESETZERERE
of HK$0.05 each AR E LR
—at 1 April 2008, 31 March 2009 -RZEBENFNA—H -
and 1 April 2009 —EEAF=ZA=T+-HEK
—EENFMNA—H - -
— Shares issued as consideration for —-EARNERERTZRNM
acquisition (Note (d)) (Kraz(d)) 4,833,333,333 241,667
— at 31 March 2010 —-—E—=f£=H=+—H 4,833,333,333 241,667
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16. SHARE CAPITAL - continued

Notes:

(a)

(c)

All th

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
in the extraordinary general meeting held on 16 February
2009, the authorised share capital of the Company increased
from HK$250,000,000 divided into 5,000,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.05 each to HK$500,000,000 divided into
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
in the extraordinary general meeting held on 3 March
2010, the authorised share capital of the Company from
HK$500,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.05 each to HK$1,500,000,000 by the creation of an
additional 12,000,000,000 ordinary shares and 8,000,000,000
non-voting convertible preference shares.

On 12 March 2009, the Company issued 899,022,397 offer
shares by an open offer at a subscription price of HK$0.05
per offer share on the basis of one offer share for every two
shares held on record date and 1,798,044,794 bonus shares
in the proportion of two bonus shares for every offer share
taken up under the open offer. The proceeds of approximately
HK$44,952,000 will be used to finance future investments
in the promising healthcare sector in the PRC, business
development of the Group and towards general working
capital.

The preference shares are non-voting shares and non-
redeemable. The holders of the preference shares are entitled
to receive the same dividends as the holders of ordinary
shares. In addition, the holders of the preference shares have
the right to convert any preference share into the Company’s
ordinary shares at any time at the conversion price at the
rate of 1 to 1 each. The conversion price will be subject to
adjustments only upon occurrence of certain dilutive events.

e shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the

then existing shares in all respects.
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16. lR & — 48

Bt E -

(a)

RERRA-_ZEZAF-_A+BE1T
ZREBHIASLEBCEEBRER

N2 B 2 3E E B 78 54250,000,0005% 7T
(% %5,000,000,0008% & B% M {H0.055%8
TT 2 E B R 0 £500,000,0005% 7T
(% #%10,000,000,000% & B% M f20.05
BT2EBER)

REBRRAR-_Z—ZSF=A=HF
TZBRRENASELEB2EZE
ARBR AQDAZEERAEBE
M 2% 12,000,000,0008% = 8 B &
8,000,000,000f% & 1% = £ 7] #2 %
& % B > FH500,000,0008 5 (9 &
10,000,000,0004% & A% EI{80.0558 Jt 2
@A) # N ZE1,500,000,0008 7T °

RZZZAF=A+=0 KAFAER
BEAEREERHD0.058 T2 ARME
E317899,022,397TREER D HE
AREHEANSEEWRR M TERE—
REERND  WARBELAHREREZ
BRBEERMD B WAL 2 tb 5 3
171,798,044, 794 AL K% - FTERIEH
44,952,000 T AERBREEZHE
EzHEBRERBRAEEEKZE
& URBE—REEES -

BERSERZERORTTED - &
ERFEAEEEZRETBEREAAN
B2IRE - o BERSAEANGERE
BRI 111 2 b RZIR AR B AS B S5 IR IR AR
AATEBR - RREENEES TH#
RIS A TR -

FRABRTZAARDESTHERERER
ZEBERODEZRREMAL -
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the difference between the aggregate net assets of the
subsidiaries acquired by the Company under the group

reorganisation in 2001 and the nominal amount of the

Company’s shares issued for the acquisition.

17. RESERVES 17. Gl
The Company b. /|
Share-based
Share payment  Contributed Convertible  Accumulated
premium reserve surplus  note reserve losses Total
URREER THBRE
Efhi&R FAVES 1 ] BARR 1] AER #t
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TER TR THER TR THT TR
At 1 April 2008 RZZENEMA-A 425,169 4,658 1452 24,693 (129,994) 325,978
Bonus issue of shares BOAR (89,902) - - - - (89,902)
Release upon redemption of ~ EETRREE&EK
convertible notes - - - (20,245) 19,424 (821)
Loss for the year rEERR - - - - (15,644) (15,644)
At 31 March 2009 RZZENE=A
and 1 April 2009 =t-Ak
“EENENAE-H 335,267 4,658 1,452 4,448 (126,214) 219,611
Issue of share options BRRE - 5,617 - - - 5,617
Equity component of TaRZHE
convertible notes EHHH - - - (1,410) 4,448 3,038
Deferred tax related to HURREEEEZ
convertible notes EEHE - - - (501) = (501)
Issue of convertible BOTAREBER
preference shares 338,333 - - - - 338,333
Share options cancelled HHBRE - (4,045) = - 4,045 =
Loss for the year REEEE - - - - (332,382) (332,382)
At 31 March 2010 RZS-8£=Z4
=t-H 673,600 6,230 1,452 2,537 (450,103) 233,716
(a) The contributed surplus of the Company represents (@) ADBZHABBEARDBRER

TEE-FCEEEAMBREBZM

BRTZBRDcEEMERZEHE -
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17. RESERVES - continued
The Company - continued

(b)

The Company had no distributable reserves as at 31
March 2010 (2009: HK$209,053,000). Under the
Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account of the Company
is available for paying distributions or dividends
to shareholders subject to the provisions of its
Memorandum and Articles of Association and provided
that immediately following the distribution or dividend
the Company is able to pay its debt as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business. In accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association, dividends shall be
distributed out of the retained profits or other reserves,
including the share premium account, of the Company.

18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

17. Gl — &
FNF -8
by R=ZEBE—ZFF=B=+—H &4
AAEAEIREE(ZTBAF
209,053,000 ) ° IRIBEFEESFHS
DNAE (BIER]) £22F - RA A
FZABERRARAREZREMT
BRRT  NBESIRFKEEERRD
AERNEEENRAEERKAREF
Bz ER  ARQATAZRMDEE
BR A LA 2 RSk AR B A RS F R
R-BEAQATzABERMAMEA
R 2 EB AL FRE R AR H A
B (BERMDEER) B -

18. RHRHMEMRTR

The Group
%EE

2010 2009
—E—EF —ZEZNF
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
THET FET
Trade payables B 5 EARIE 169,112 12,453
Bill payables S E 28,660 =
Accruals and other payables FEstE R R E M ESFIE 52,976 18,154
250,748 30,607
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18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES - 18. BB B K fth ¥ 1 R IF — 4]
continued
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the LUTARBERARA2E ZENRERER
end of the reporting period: DA
The Group
*&KEH
2010 2009
—E—E5F —EENF
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
THERT FExT
0 to 90 days 0&90H 101,448 5,687
91 to 180 days 91£180H 46,001 6,271
181 to 365 days 1812365H 11,177 82
Over 365 days #BiB365H 10,486 413
169,112 12,453
Bill payables were secured by certain pledged bank deposits. ENEEUETEEMETERIEAIK
# o
19. BANK BORROWINGS 19. BT E
The Group
*&KEH
2010 2009
—E—ZF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Bank borrowings IRITIEE 47,310 =
Secured (Note (a)) BIRA (B E) 35,910 =
Unsecured (Note (b)) I (M D)) 11,400 =
47,310 -

EEBAEEARALT
£ 2009/2010




108

Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7% R 3= B &

31 March 2010 Z&E—ZF=H=+—H

19. BANK BORROWINGS - continued

19. BITHE 18

The Group
*EE
2010 2009
—E—EF —EEZNF
HK$’'000 HK$’ 000
THER THERT
Carrying amount repayable: EEERESHE :
On demand or within one year RERR—FR 47,310 =
More than one year, but not —FE BERBBEMF
exceeding two years - -
More than two years, but not MELE BFRBBAEFE
exceeding five years - -
More than five years EFEUE - -
Less: Amounts due within one year B EFARBEER
shown under current liabilities —FREHZHE (47,310) -
Notes: B &E

(1) The secured bank borrowings were secured by land and
buildings owned by independent third party and bear
interest ranged from 3.24% to 6.11% per annum. The
weighted average effective interest rate on the secured bank
borrowings is 4.8% per annum.

(2)  The unsecured bank borrowings bear interest at 5.4% per
annum. The weighted average effective interest rate on the
unsecured bank borrowings is 5.4% per annum.

20. AMOUNTS DUE TO MINORITY
SHAREHOLDERS

Amounts due to minority shareholders are unsecured,
interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
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BIERBBRITEEDUBILIE=FHEZ
T REFERKT  WIRFFIFE3.24
EZ6.11EE - BIERARITEEZM
BT BEREFERIZE -

KRB ITEERFERNESAETTE - &
HARITEEZMEFLIEREFNERS
5.48 °

20. RVBBERZRIA

RLOBRRZHEREERT RERE
B EZE MK o
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21. CONVERTIBLE NOTE

(a)

On 25 November 2005, the Company entered into
a placing agreement with an independent placing
agent, Hantec Capital Limited (the “Placing Agent”), to
place on a best endeavours basis of certain unsecured
convertible notes in the aggregate principal amount of
more than HK$15,000,000 and up to HK$20,000,000
to placees (the “Placing Agreement”).

On 11 January 2006,
Agreement took place. An aggregate principal amount
of HK$18,000,000 (the
been placed through the Placing Agent and issued by

completion of the Placing
“Convertible Notes 1”) have
the Company to 13 independent placees (the “Notes
Holder”). The Convertible Notes 1 matures at the third

anniversary of the issue date.

The Convertible Notes 1,
issued, are convertible into a total of approximately

if fully subscribed for and

67,164,179 new ordinary shares of the Company at
the initial conversion price of HK$0.268 per ordinary
share (subject to adjustments).

On 11 April 2006, the Company completed the issue
of 172,465,166 rights shares. Pursuant to the terms
of the Convertible Notes 1, the conversion prices of
the Convertible Notes 1 were adjusted accordingly.
The new conversion price per share and the number of
conversion shares after the rights issue subject to the
Convertible Notes 1 was 86,956,521 shares exercisable

at HK$0.207 each.

On 16 February 2007, the Company completed the
open offer of 355,523,083 offer shares. Pursuant to
the terms of the Convertible Notes 1, the conversion
prices of the Convertible Notes 1 were adjusted
accordingly. The new conversion price per share and
the number of conversion shares after the open offer
subject to the Convertible Notes 1 was 33,816,425

shares exercisable at HK$0.161 each.

B 7% R MY &

31 March 2010 ZZ2—ZF=H=+—H

21. AR RE

(a)

R-ZZEZEHEF+-A=+EAB "
RN F) B — F 18 I i & EHantec
Capital Limited ([BEE AR 1) 7132
BEHZE REHEERELTAE
£ #FE 215,000,000 TR & %
#20,000,0007 T 2 S IK 7 Al 2 iR
EEFABRA (BEHRED -

F_771\$ B+—8 BEH
FOTR c BAGENRE  BEX
f%@%ms 000,000 Jt ([ AT pR =
B—1)  THARAREITTFIZEE
VAEBA ((REBFEEAD o ATRR
EE-REBETHHETR=EFE
H o

TR EE —EREYR ﬂ%&é&
T ARV TERESREBER
02688 T (AT FHRE)BaAGH
#67,164, 179 AR B FHEBR °

R=ZZBEZERXEMA+—B &2
7] 5¢ K B 17172,465, 166H§H§i\ﬂ§fﬂﬁ
7o RBABRREE — 2 &R
}ﬁﬂﬁf\%—zmﬂaaﬁ’ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁaﬂ
BEoRHEBEE TBREBEEE—ZH
BRRERBREROBEEARATRE
fR0207B T 2 BHRITHE BBRA
86,956,521 R B 17 ©

AZEZELE_A+H RAF
5T K AN B 3% £355,523,083 % &
I3 o RIBATEIRFIE — 2R
AHBREE—2BRESFHERE
FE ALABBER TBRRERE
—RIEBRREREARBRHAHEE S
AEER0161EBITITHE B A
33,816,425 R 17 ©

1
st R
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21. CONVERTIBLE NOTE - continued

(a) - continued

The Convertible Notes 1 contains two components,
liability and equity elements. The equity element
is presented in equity heading “Convertible note
reserve”. The effective interest rate of the liability
component is 6.73%.

The fair value of the liability component was calculated
using a market interest rate for an equivalent non-
convertible bond. The residual amount, representing
the value of the equity conversion component, was
included in shareholders’ equity in convertible note
reserve.

110 Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
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21. MR RE &

(a)

— &

THRREE - BEaBEREZWI
7o REByRERIRI TRREE
REIET 2 - 8EH2 2EBER
E56.73E °

BEMDZAFETDASEFTHR
REHF 2T ENRAE - RS
RERBBRES 2EE  JIsTAT
BRESREBZRRESZA -
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(a)
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21. MR RE &

— continued

The Convertible Notes 1 recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position was calculated as

follows:

@ -—#&

REEMBRRREI ZTRERR
B—2stEWT

The Group and
the Company

FEARELT
HK$'000
THExT
Face value of Convertible Notes 1 issued RZZEZEARF—A+—HETZ
on 11 January 2006 AMBREE—2HE 18,000
Equity component R (499)
Liability component on initial recognition RIZZZEXF—A+—H
at 11 January 2006 ASERAGEZEET D 17,501
Transaction costs R 5 A (827)
Amortised cost on initial recognition R-ZEERE—HAT—H
11 January 2006 ) 2 T TR B 2 18 8 A AR 16,674
Interest expense FERX 246
Interest payable EARE (158)
Amortised cost at 31 March 2006 REBEEARFEF=ZA=T—HK
and at 1 April 2006 “EERFNA—B2EEAR 16,762
Interest expense FERX 623
Interest payable FE A3 F 2. (406)
Converted into Company’s shares =B BRNTRHG (14,651)
Amortised cost at 31 March 2007 RZZBEZELF=A=+—HK
and at 1 April 2007 —EELFMA-—BZEERE 2,328
Interest expense FEF X 160
Interest payable EARE (100)
Amortised cost at 31 March 2008 R=ZBENF=ZA=+—HE
and at 1 April 2008 —EENFHA-—BZBEAR 2,388
Interest expense F BB X 191
Interest payable EARE (79)
Repayment during maturity EHA B (E 2 (2,500)

Amortised cost at 31 March 2009

R-ZBZEAF=ZA=T+T—HZEHEELX
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21. CONVERTIBLE NOTE - continued

(a) - continued

Convertible Notes 1 were fully repaid during the year
ended 31 March 2009.

Interest expense on the convertible note is calculated
using the effective interest method by applying
the effective interest rate of 6.73% to the liability
component.

(b) On 9 May 2007, the Group acquired the entire issued
share capital of Hero Vision at a consideration of
HK$157,300,000, the consideration of HK$33,000,000
were satisfied by the issue of convertible note (the
“Convertible Notes 2”). The Convertible Notes 2
matured at the second anniversary of the issue date.
During the year ended 31 March 2010, the maturity
date of Convertible Notes 2 was extend from 8 May
2009 to 9 May 2017. The conversion price share was
HK$0.211.

The Convertible Notes 2 contains three components,
redemption option, liability and equity elements.
The equity element is presented in equity heading
“Convertible note reserve”. The effective interest rate
of the liability component is 10.97%.

The fair value of the liability component was calculated
using a market interest rate for an equivalent non-
convertible bond. The residual amount, representing
the value of the equity conversion component, was
included in shareholders’ equity in convertible note
reserve.
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21. MR RE &

(a)

— &

THREBE-EREBE-ZTZTNF
A=+t BLFEXRHEE-

ARBEEEZANERZINERAER
FELZRBEEER T 2BERA =X
6.73EFtE -

A—ZEZELERANB  AEEBL
& 18157,300,00058 7T & B8 1 =
B2 #TRA - XEH33,000,000
BTEEBRBTURRER (TR
REE =) ZfF e A RBREE R
BITAMESAMBFEE -BZE
:%—%¢:H:+—E¢¢F
AR EE _—_ZRHBHAEHRT

niﬁﬁ)\HLEi_i—tﬁﬁ
AN B - BRIEKRER0.211B T -

‘JM&:‘—?%}“‘@%&E@&E*&E =
BERER=HD HEBHrRER
IRIATRREERFEIETZ5 -8
BERD 2EBRFER10.97E °

BEBRD 2 AFETDASEFTHR
REZF2HBENRTE - NErE 5
RERBBRESZEE AT
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21. MR RE &

— continued

The Convertible Notes 2 recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position was calculated as

follows:

— &

(b)

RESHBRRTREI 2 ATRBRE
B2 t&EWT :

The Group and

the Company

EEEREFLTF
HK$' 000
FE&T

Fair value of Convertible Notes 2 R-ZZEZNFERANBEITZ
issue on 9 May 2009 AMBREE -2 AFE 54,750
Less: Derivative financial instruments W PTESRmIA 514
Equity component D (25,125)

Liability component on initial recognition RZZZEt&HBNH

and amortised cost at 9 May 2007 NTHEABF2EES D R BHEKA 30,139
Interest expense FERX 1,828
Interest payable EAFRE (593)

Amortised cost at 31 March 2008 RZEBEENF=ZA=1+T—HK
and at 1 April 2008 —EENFMNA—HBZ#HEAR 31,374
Interest expense FEF X 1,631
Interest payable EARE (506)
Redemption during the year FRER (26,030)
Amortised cost at 31 March 2009 RZZEZRNF=ZA=1T—HZ#EHEHE 6,469
Interest expense FERZ 31
Extinguishment of convertible note i eE AT R AR E B (6,500)
Liability component recognised ERAZEEEHS 3,462
Interest expense FMEREX 337
Interest payable EARE (58)
At 31 March 2010 R-E—ZF=H=+—H 3,741
EEEEFEEBAERADA
£ 2009/2010




Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7% 3R 3= B &

31 March 2010 Z&E—ZFF=H=+—H

21. CONVERTIBLE NOTE - continued 21. JRBRRE &
(b) - continued by —#&
As at 31 March 2010, the outstanding principal RZEBE-ZF=F=+—8H -
amount of Convertible Notes 2 was HK$6,500,000 TRBEE _2RABEELXS
(2009: HK$6,500,000). Principal amount of 25 56,500,000 T (ZEZ A
HK$26,500,000 was repaid during the year ended 31 % :6,500,000/8 ) o A& F
March 2009. 26,500,000 TERBE=ZEZN

F=ZA=1t—HBLEEFEEEE-

Interest expense on the convertible note is calculated ARREE R EEXIERASKE
using the effective interest method by applying the NEZREEGSNR S 2EEF=R
effective interest rate of 10.97% to the liability 10.97 25t & -
component.
22. PROMISSORY NOTE 22. AR\
On 8 March 2010, the Company issued promissory note in a RZEBE—ZF=AN\AH ' RDABTARE
principal amount of HK$290,000,000 due on 7 March 2020. £6290,000,0008 TR =—ZE=-_FF=At
Promissory note were issued for acquiring the entire issued BEHzEAREE ARAZEDAKE
share capital of Nurture Fit Limited and bear interest at 1% HEERADEZHECHITRAMEIT
per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The effective REFNRIEFE  B¥FRE—R-E
interest rate is 3%. PRAIZERIE o
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22. PROMISSORY NOTE - continued 22. RRFRIE— 18
The Group and
the Company
FRERFLT
HK$’ 000
FET
At 1 April 2008, 31 March 2009 R-ZEENFNA—B - ZZ2Z2NE
and 1 April 2009 ZEA=t—-BR=ZZhhFWTNA—H -
Fair value of promissory note R-Z-—ZF=ANBEITZ
issued on 8 March 2010 EAEBEZATE 240,211
Interest expense FMEREX 453
Interest payable FE A3 FI 2 (182)
At 31 March 2010 R-Z—2F=HA=1+—H 240,482
23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 23. SRR iERT®
(a) Pre-listing share options (a) kv RE B 4
Pursuant to the pre-listing share option scheme BRERAQXFAR-_ZZ2_FWOA=+
adopted by the Company on 20 April 2002, the Bz EmAERET S KA
Company may grant options at HK$1 per offer to any AR A IER B IR R E B
directors, employees, consultants, and advisors of the TZREOAQARARENE LR Z
Company or its subsidiaries, for the primary purpose of RAEE - EE EREEKRERB
providing incentives to them, to subscribe for shares in READBBERAATRD ZERE
the Company. All of these options have duration of 10 LUSEE) Eaf A £ o RIBFTEIRK -
years from and including 10 May 2002 subject to the FEZEBRENR-_ZZT_FHA
terms of the scheme. + B (B#EF#%A) B5H10FERABM
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

(a) Pre-listing share options - continued
Details of the movements in the number of share

23. iRRR Rt ®I -8
(a) ETRTMEARHE — &

options during the year under the Company’s pre-

listing share options scheme which are exercisable in

three equal trenches from 10 November 2002, 10 May
2003 and 10 May 2004, respectively, to 9 May 2012
at an exercise price of HK$0.245 (2009: HK$0.245) per

share are as follows:

RATETAIBRESEET 2
BRESERAFEZEBFE
WF - ZEERETIHIR=-ZZ
—#+—A+H =—EE=FEHA
TERE=ZEENEFRER+HEZ=
TZ-——_FHANBHB > 5=#H1T
£ SHUTEHBEE  TFEE
BERO245B T (ZEZNEF :
0.245%7T) -

Number of share options

BRENE
Outstanding Adjustment Outstanding
at 31 March during at 31 March
Type of participants 2009 the year 2010 Date of grant
RZBELE RZZ-ZF
=A=+-H =Z=RA=+-H
BHEFR R AT & FARE I RITE RHARY
Former advisor of the Group 1,371,056 - 1,371,056 25 April 2002
AEERERY —EE-E
MA=t+EH
Former employee of the Group 910,314 - 910,314 25 April 2002
FEBHES o
mA=t&H
Total 2,281,370 - 2,281,370
@t
Weighted average
exercise price HK$0.245 - HK$0.245
MEFHETEE 024557 - 024587
The pre-listing share options outstanding at 31 March RZEBE-—ZFE=ZHA=1+—HZRTHFEL

2010 had weighted average remaining contractual life

of 2.07 years.
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued
(b) Post-listing share options

Pursuant to the post-listing share option scheme
also adopted by the Company on 20 April 2002, the
Company may grant options at HK$1 per offer to any
directors, employees, any supplier of goods or services,
any customers, any person or entity that provides
research, development or other technical support or
any shareholder of the Group or any investee or any
holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any investee, for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to them, to subscribe for shares in
the Company. The total number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the post-listing
share option scheme shall not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.
No participant shall be granted an option, if exercise in
full, would result in the total number of shares already
issued under all the options granted to him or her that
are for the time being subsisting and unexercised in
any 12-month period would exceed 1% of the total
number of shares in issue. The exercise price of the
share will be determined at the higher of the average
of closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange
on the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the options; the closing price of the
shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;
and the nominal value of the shares. The share options
are exercisable for a period not later than 10 years
from the date of grant.

B 7% R M &

31 March 2010 ZZ2—ZF=H=+—H

23. iRRR Rt ®I -8
(b) LA
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued
(b) Post-listing share options - continued

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
Report 2009/2010

Annual

Details of the movements in the number of share

options during the year are as follows:

23. Bix{ERIE 1A

(b) kMR —i&
FRBREHEZHFFOT

Number of share options
WERNE
Outstanding
and
Outstanding Granted Exercised  Adjustment  Cancelled  exercisable Exercise
at 31 March during during during during  at 31 March price
Type of participants 2009 the year the year the year the year 2010  Dateof grant  pershare  Exercise period
RZE-8%
RISSAE =A=+-A
=A=+-H RRTE
SHEER RRTE FREH FERfTE FRRE FRES® RUTOE BHANM SERTER T8
Directors
Bz
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong 5,403,475 - - - (5403,475) - 13July 2006 HK$0.376 13 July 2006 to
12 July 2016
SEALE ZEIRE  0376%R ZBERE
tAt=H tA+=R%
ZE-RF
tA+=H
9,666,667 - - - (9,666,667) - 21 March2007  HK$0.306 21 March 2007 to
20 March 2017
ZEELE 03068 b33 3
=B=t-8 ZR=t-R%
“E-t&
ZA=tH
17,000,000 - - - - 17,000,000 30 March 2009 HK$0.05 30 September 2009
t0 29 March 2019
ZEERE 00587 “EINE
=A=1H hA=tHE
ZE-nE
=B=thH
Mr. Zheng Gang 17,000,000 - - - - 17,000,000 30 March 2009 HK$0.05 30 September 2009
to 29 March 2019
BREE ZEENE 005ET ZRENE
=B=tH NB=1+HZE
ZEZ-0F
ZB=thB
- 27,000,000 - - - 27,000,000 18 March2010  HK$0.117 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015
“2-%F (7B “E2-%F
ZATNA ZA=tZHEZ
“E-1%
ZB=+ZH
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued 23. SRRt R — |
(b) Post-listing share options — continued (b) LSRR E—&
Number of share options
BRENE
Outstanding
and
Outstanding Granted Exercised  Adjustment  Cancelled exercisable Exercise
at 31 March during during during during  at 31 March price
Type of participants 2009 the year the year the year the year 2010  Dateof grant  pershare  Exercise period
RIB-8%
RZIBEAE EHERSH
ZR=t-8 R T
BHEFH RRTE FREH FR{TE FhRE FREH RUTTE RHEY SROER s
Mr. Chen Jin Shan 11,468,600 - - - (11,468,600) - 13 July 2006 HK$0.376 13 July 2006 to
12 July 2016
RelsE ZEZERE 0376B7n ZEIRE
tAT=H tAt=A%
ZE-RE
tA+=H
6,500,000 - - - (6,500,000) - 21 March2007  HK$0.306 21 March 2007 to
20 March 2017
ZRZEE 0306%7R SERLE
=B=t-H ZRZt-HEZ
it 23
ZA=tH
17,000,000 - - - - 17,000,000 30 March 2009 HK$0.05 30 September 2009
to 29 March 2019
“EENE 005ER “EENE
=B=tH hA=tHE
“E2-NfF
ZA=thA
- 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000 18March2010  HK$0.117 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015
ZE-ZE 017ER ZE-BE
ZATNA ZA=t=E
“B-1f%
ER==H
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued
(b) Post-listing share options - continued

Number of share options

23. Bix{ERIE 1A
(b) LR —&

REREKE
Outstanding
and
Outstanding Granted  Exercised Adjustment  Cancelled exercisable Exercise
at 31 March during during during during at 31 March price
Type of participants 2009 the year the year the year the year 2010 Date of grant  per share  Exercise period
RZS-8%
RZBZAE ZA=+-H
=R=+-H RRITE
SHREFR RFKTE FARH FEMTTE FhEE FAEH RUFTE RHBH SBSRITER s
Dr. Jiang Tao 11,468,600 - - - (11,468,600) - 13July2006  HK$0.376 13 July 2006 to
12 July 2016
EREL ZEIRE  0376%R ZBERE
tAt=H tA+=R%
“B-RE
tA+=H
6,500,000 - - - (6,500,000) - 21March2007  HK$0.306 21 March 2007 to
20 March 2017
ZERLE 03068 “ERLE
ZB=t-8 ZR=f-R%
“E-tf
=B=tH
8,000,000 - - - - 8,000,000 30 March 2009 HK$0.05 30 September 2009
t0 29 March 2019
ZBERE 00987 “EINE
=A=tH hA=tHE
“E2-NF
ZB=tnhH
- 15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000 18 March 2010 HK$0.117 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015
ZE-BE  (017ER ZB-2%
ZATNA ZA-t=HZ
—E-1E
=A=t=A

Mr. Huang Jiaging 10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000 30 March 2009 HK$0.05 30 September 2009
(appointed on t0 29 March 2019
30 July 2009)

ENEEE “EENE 005ER “EENF
(R=BZhE =A=1H NA=TRZ
tA=TREZMH) “B-nf

=B=thH

- 3,000,000 - - - 3000000 18March 2010  HK$0.117 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015

ZE-BE  0117ER ZB-%F

ZATNA ZA-t=RZ

“E2-0f

=A=t=A

Mr. Weng Jiaxing - 19,000,000 - - - 19,000,000 18 March 2010 HK$0.117 23 March 2010 to
(appointed on 22 March 2015
26 March 2010)

SMEXE Z2-2F  (0N7ER —B-%F
(R=E-ZF ZAtNAH ZA-t=HE
ZRZtREEZE) —2-1f

ZB=tZ=H
120,007,342 84,000,000 - - (51,007,342) 153,000,000

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
Report 2009/2010

Annual




Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7% ¥R 3= B &

31 March 2010 Z&E—ZF=H=+—H

23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued
(b) Post-listing share options - continued

23. ARGt B — 4R
(b) LR —&

Number of share options

REREKE
Outstanding
and
Outstanding Granted  Exercised Adjustment  Cancelled exercisable Exercise
at 31 March during during during during at 31 March price
Type of participants 2009 the year the year the year the year 2010 Date of grant  per share  Exercise period
RZS-8%
RZBZAE =ZA=1+-H
=R=+-H RRITE
SHREFR RFKTE FARH FEMTTE FhEE FAEH RUFTE RHBH SBSRITER s
Employees and 32,310,575 - - - (21,283,075) 11,027,500 13 July 2006 HK$0.376 13 July 2006 to
consultants of 12 July 2016
the Group “EERE 037681 ZETRE
AEEESREE tA+=H tB+=HZE
ZER-RE
tB+=H
27,127,650 - - - (27,127,650) - 24July2006  HK$0.372 24 July 2006 to
23 July 2016
ZETRE  032ER “RERE
tB=tmA tA=tHmAZ
ZE-RE
tA=t=H
131,500,000 - - - (110,666,667) 20,833,333 21 Mar 2007  HK$0.306 21 March 2007 to
20 March 2017
ZETLE 030681 “REtE
ZA=t-H ZAZt-RZ
“E-t%
ZA=tH
102,000,000 - - - - 102,000,000 30 March 2009 HKS$0.0530 September 2009
to 29 March 2019
ZZEAE 0.058% “EENE
=ZA=tH NA=1tHE
ZB-NF
=ZH=thA
- 194,000,000 - - - 194,000,000 18 March 2010 HKS$0.117 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015
ZE-ZE  0117ER “E2-%f
=B+NR =B=t=HZ
“B-1f
ER=T=6
412,945,567 278,000,000 - - (210,084,734) 480,860,833
Weighted average
exercise price HK$0.215  HK$0.117 - - HK$0.331  HK$0.107
MEFHTEE 02158 0.117ER% = - 038R 0.107E%

R-ZB-ZE=A=1+—-RAZRKRT
£ L W% R RPN ERE
KPR %6.52%F »

The post-listing share options outstanding at 31 March
2010 had weighted average remaining contractual life
of 6.52 years.
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued
(b) Post-listing share options - continued

Notes:

0)

(if)

The Group recognises the fair value of share options
granted as an expense in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income when they were granted with
a corresponding increase being recognised in share-
based payment reserve. The employee share-based
payment reserve is transferred to share capital and
share premium, together with the exercise price, when
the option holder exercises its rights. As a transitional
provision, the cost of share option granted after 7
November 2002 and had not yet vested on 1 January
2005 were expensed retrospectively in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income of the respective
periods. During the year ended 31 March 2010,
approximately HK$5,617,000 share-based payment
expenses were recognised.

Share options granted under the pre-listing share
options scheme are not expensed as the options were
all granted and vested before 7 November 2002 and
not subject to requirements of HKFRS 2.

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
Report 2009/2010

Annual

23. fRBx#Es 8 -

(b) kMR —i&

MIEE -

(i)

AEERBRERLEBESRERE
HERARIACREEREZ D F
@%;m'tpuwﬁ%g@z
HMiEERRREEEN -ES
u&ﬁ%E%Zﬁ LB
REFBATEHLEANSER
THEEERERARRK D RE -
ERBEMKRN  R=FZT=F
+t—AtHRERYE BR=-ZZ
EF—B—BEAREE2BRE
BRADREBHEZEAERE
WEEAEBANGR - REZE=F
—ZE=ZA=1+-HLEFE ¥
5,617,0005% 7t A BR 17 2 B B A4 3K
ZHAXEFHER -

B PR IE £ T Al IR R AT B4R H
ZERESN-ZZ=_F+—H
+tHARERBEEE X132
BB IR RAER 2R PR - 5
WEKIHZEBRE -




Notes to the Financial Statements

23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

(b) Post-listing share options - continued
Notes: — continued

(iii)

The estimated fair value of each option granted on 7
July 2005, 13 July 2006, 24 July 2006, 21 March 2007,
30 March 2009 and 18 March 2010 are approximately
HK$0.0299, HK$0.0226, HK$0.0188, HK$0.0384,
range from HK$0.012 to HK$0.021 and range from
HK$0.036 to HK$0.062 respectively.

The fair values were calculated using the Binomial
option pricing model. The inputs into the model were as

B 7% R MY &

31 March 2010 Z&E—ZF=H=+—H

23. ARGt B — 4R

(b) LThkABAR 4 — i
M — 4

(iii)

R-ZZHEELALtH ZZ2Z
RNELtA+=8 ZFFTREL
B-+HmMA -=—ZZFLtHF=A
“t+t—HB -ZZEEAF=ZA=T
AR=Z-—ZFE=-A+N\AEH
ZENHBEREZHTAFEESD
# %0.02998 JT ~ 0.022678 T
0.018878 7t » 0.038438 7t » N F
00128 LR0.021B TR N F
0.0368 T £0.062/8 TT °

DNFPEDU-ZBAHEEEER
TE o HZEABAZERNT :

follows:
Share option grant date
BRERHAY

Date of grant 7July 2005 13 July 2006 24 July 2006 21 March 2007 30 March 2009 18 March 2010

~221% ot £ 182 ~BBRE ~B3tF =t 1y 3-2%
A tAtH tAt=A +tAZ-tmMA =A=t+-AH =A=+H =A+)\A
Stock asset price RAEER HKS0.1028 7 HK$0.83#E7  HKS0.827  HKSOS1E  HKS0.03#7  HK$0.09878 7t
Exercise price k& HK$0.079% T  HK$0.62787  HKS0.6287  HKSOS1BZ  HKS0.05B7  HKS0.1178 7T
Expected volatility RHRE 10.23% 57.06% 44.89% 119.62% 100.13% 95.53%
Risk-free rate BEBEE 3.130% 3.984% 3.830% 3.682% 1.62% 1.68%
Expected dividend yield BHREE R 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

The volatility measured at the standard deviation of
expected share price returns is based on statistical
analysis of daily prices over the one year immediately
preceding the grant date. The above calculation is
based on the assumption that there is no material
difference between the expected volatility over the
whole life of the options and the historical volatility of
the shares set out as above.

Because the Binomial option pricing model requires
the input of highly subjective assumptions, including
the volatility of share price, changes in subjective
input assumptions can materially affect the fair value
estimate.

BEEMRENHR2EERESE
ZREDREZZEREAR—F
ZBHERBED T - LHFHE
DRENEREARHRN ZEB
R E B L3t P 8 2 IR 1 SRR iR
ZEBWFERBMBEK -

HR-EANEEERLATES

EXBHsBR  BEROERKZ

BiE MEBBRRZEHIHEE
HEBNTENME -
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

(b) Post-listing share options - continued
Notes: — continued

(iv)

(vi)

On 12 March 2009, the Company completed the open
offer. Pursuant to the terms of the pre-listing and post-
listing share options schemes, the exercise prices of
the share options were adjusted accordingly. The new
exercise price per share and the number of shares
subject to the outstanding share options after the open
offer under the pre-listing and post-listing share option
schemes are 2,281,370 shares exercisable at HK$0.245
each and 60,651,250 shares exercisable at HK$0.376
each (granted on 13 July 2006), 27,127,650 shares
exercisable at HK$0.372 each (granted on 24 July
2006) and 154,166,667 shares exercisable at HK$0.306
(granted on 21 March 2007) respectively.

As at 31 March 2010, 262,760,833 share options are
exercisable.

In accordance with the term’s of share-based
arrangement, the share options granted on 30 March
2009 are exercisable in the following manner:

(@ up to 40% of the share options granted to
each grantee shall be exercisable on or after 30
September 2009 to 30 March 2010;

(b)  up to further 30% of the share options granted
to each grantee shall be exercisable on or after
31 March 2010 to 30 March 2011; and

() all the remaining 30% of the share options
granted to each grantee shall be exercisable on or
after 31 March 2011 to 30 March 2012, and in
each case, not later than 29 March 2019.

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
Report 2009/2010

Annual

23. ARGt B — 4R

(b) LThkABAR 4 — i
M — 4

(iv)

RZZEFEAF=A+=H &2
ARKARBE RELTAIR
FHBBRETE IR BR
B2THEEESELHEERARE - K
AHABEE LHAIRETEBE
BREGBETRTEZBREZ
FERTEERFAIRZBHE
B 5Bl B ARER0.2458 TITE
EE2,281, 370 10 R Tz B K
0.37678 LT £ 2 #860,651,250/
RH (R=ZB2ELA+=E#
H) » AERER0372BTITER
0§27,127, 650 5 (R=F =
FLA-TMNARY) RAURER
0.3067% 7T 1T £ 52 88 154,166,667
KRG (R=FELtE=A=+—
BiEH) o

R=ZE-—ZFF=ZA=+—-H8"
AFTREZBEREHE R
262,760,8331% ©

RIBURGDAERZHE 2GR
R-ZBZAE=A=+AEHEH
BRI IRT AT

(a) BBAO%NERFHEEEA
ZERETE-ZEZThEH
B=tHgzgBEz—Z2—F
F=ZA=1+HTE;

(b) HEIHIRZ30%CETF LR
BAZBREIE-—T—F
F=A=t—REzEBE=
Z——F=A=+HTE;
&

(0 ZHEBET30%C FFE&E
BAZERETE T ——
FZA=Z+—HHBZEE=
E—_F=A=1+HTE
HEREBERTAEER=-Z
—NE=A=+hBTE-
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

(b) Post-listing share options - continued
Notes: — continued

(vii)

In accordance with the term’s of share-based
arrangement, the share options granted on 18 March
2010 are exercisable in the following manner:

(@) up to 40% of the share options granted to each
grantee shall be exercisable on or after 23 March
2010 to 22 March 2011;

(b)  up to further 20% of the share options granted
to each grantee shall be exercisable on or after
23 March 2011 to 22 March 2012;

() up to further 20% of the share options granted
to each grantee shall be exercisable on or after
23 March 2012 to 22 March 2013; and

(d) all the remaining 20% of the share options
granted to each grantee shall be exercisable on or
after 23 March 2013 to 22 March 2014, and in
each case, not later than 22 March 2015.

B 7% R MY &

31 March 2010 Z&E—ZF=H=+—H

23. Bix{ERIE 1A

(b) LThkABAR 4 — i
M — 4

(vii)

RIBURDEERZH 2GR
R-ZE—ZE=A+NAEHZ
BRETIZEATARITE

(@) BZA%RTEFEEAREA
ZEREITR-_ZE—ZF=
BZt+=H5iz®%&EZ=%F
——F=A=-t+=H1TE;

(b) ZEHNBZ20%C RFE&K
BAZBERETE T ——
FE=ZA-+=HH2EBE=
E-——_F=ZA=-+=AHT
& ;

(0 HEHIBRZ20%C BFE&E
BAZEREANE-_Z—=
FE-A-t+=HA=5ZzEE=
EZ—-=%=B=-+=HTT
R

(d) ZEHEET20%CE TR &
BRAZBRETE_Z—=
FE-A-t+=HA"5ZEE=
EZ-NME=F=-+=H1T
£ HREBRTFAEBER
—E-HF=A-+=AHT
& o
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24. TURNOVER AND OTHER REVENUE

Turnover represents the aggregate of the net amounts

received and receivable from third parties in connection with

the retail and wholesale and distribution of pharmaceutical

products, provision of general hospital services and

healthcare and hospital management services. An analysis of

the Group’s turnover and other revenue is as follows:

24, BEREAREMI S

EXBRRHITERMBRIHEY - 2
HEEHBREREUARBERBREE
RBEWREBWE =T 2 BFIBFE - K
SEzEEBARAEMBBZZHOT :

2010 2009
—E—-TF —EENF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
THET THET
Turnover: EXE:
Retail of pharmaceutical products BYEE 9,784 =
Wholesale and distribution of
pharmaceutical products EYIRE R 2 8H 43,071 =
Provision of general hospital services RMEZRE M ERRRE 125,360 155,719
Provision of healthcare and hospital RHEERER
management services =REd:F S 1,550 14,368
179,765 170,087
Other revenue: Htig& :
Interest income FE WA 532 422
Sundry income FIEIA 805 -
1,337 422

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009/2010
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25. LOSS FROM OPERATIONS 25. BBEEHFE

Loss from operations has been arrived at after BEXEBERNVENRTIHEBESH :
charging:
2010 2009
—E—-ZF —EENF
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
TET FTET
Directors’ remuneration (Note 26) BEMWE (BiE26) 2,374 2,380
Other staff’s retirement benefits Hih 8 T 2RIAKEF
scheme contributions sTEI{E R 3,047 2,604
Other staff costs Hh 8 TR 25,682 11,637
31,103 16,621
Auditors’ remuneration ZEE & 1,050 1,048
Provision for impairment losses of B Rk HMEWRIE
trade and other receivables VRN SRR ] 489 1,381
Cost of goods sold E5 R 53,625 =
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments &1+ 78 & 7x 18 # £ 977 962
Depreciation of property, plant and M- -BERRZEBTE
equipment — owned by the Group -BAEEEE 11,200 10,629
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE BER
and equipment HiBZEE 28 10
Operating lease rentals in respect of Bt RIEFZ
land and buildings KREHERS 5,378 6,211

Change in fair value derivative financial

MEESRMITACZATEES

instruments - 511
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZEE 23,185 3,856
Impairment loss on goodwill BEREEE 171,422 202,547
and after crediting: RetA
Other income: HMA -

Net exchange gain & 5 U & 0F 58 230 2,085
Change in fair value derivative TEemMI AN TEEZH

financial instruments 93 -

Reversal of trade and other payables Bo R EAMEMNRERE 138 —
461 2,085

EEEESEEEBERAAA

F#H2009/2010
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26. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 26. EEB &
The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 BEBNEBE_E—ZSFER-_ZBEZNEF
March 2010 and 2009 are set out below: ZSA=t—HLEFEEZHFME RIS
T :
Performance Retirement
Salaries and related incentive benefits scheme
Fees other benefits payments contributions Total
g FeRAMRT FRARRBMAR BRI #t
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
—3-2F -EINE ZB-3F “EEINE ZE-3F -IENF ZB-BF -EINE 8- “EIAE
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
T TEn TR TEn T TEn TR TEn T TEn
Executive Directors HnES
Yung Kwok Leong SER
("Mr. Yung") ([gE=%EE]) - - 708 708 - - 12 12 720 720
Shum Ngai Pan hRE(R=2ENE
(retired on 30 July 2009) £ A =T REE) - = 57 m - = 3 9 60 180
Chen Jin Shan B = = 60 60 = = = - 60 60
Jiang Tao BB = = 360 360 - - - - 360 360
Zheng Gang B = = 748 748 - - 12 12 760 760
Weng Jiaxing (appointed ~ BME(R=E-F%
on 26 March 2010) ZB=t~AEZEF) - - 4 - - - - - 4 -
Huang Jioging (appointed ~ EME (R=FENE
on 30 July 2009) tA=tREZR) - - 80 - - - - - 80 -
- - 2,017 2,047 - - 27 33 2,044 2,080
Non-Executive Director ~ F#{TEE
Wong Yu Man, James IRR - - 114 114 - - 6 6 120 120
Independent Non- BUFHTES
Executive Directors
Hsu William Shiu Foo BRX(R=ZENE
(retired on 30 July 2009) £ A=TREE) 35 60 - - - - - - 35 60
Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne EEE 60 60 - - - - - - 60 60
Yu Chai Mei FEX(RZZINE
(retired on 30 July 2009) A=t HE) 35 60 - = - - - = 35 60
Hu Shanlian (appointed ~ #HEH (R=FZhF
on 30 July 2009) tA=THEZR) 40 - - - - - - - 40 -
Lu Chuanzhen (appointed ~ BEE (R=ZEHE
on 30 July 2009) tA=TREER) 40 = - - - - - - 40 =
210 180 - - - - - - 210 180
210 180 2,131 2,161 - - 33 39 2,374 2,380

RAFE FAEBIELESZIAHE

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to

the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the

Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the

directors has waived any emoluments during the year.

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
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27. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 27. EEEM £
The five highest paid employees during the year included FREZBOHEEEE=R(ZZEN
three (2009: three) directors. Details of whose remuneration F I =ZR)BEE - HECHESHBERE
are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial B REMEE26 ©
statements.
For the year ended 31 March 2010, the details of the BE-Z-ZF=-A=1+—HLEE"
remuneration of the remaining two non-directors, highest BRTMEFEBECREEFEECHE
paid employee are as follows: BT :
2010 2009
—E—Z5F —EENEF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
TET FE T
Basic salaries and allowances EARFEKIER 1,146 2,140
Retirement benefits scheme BARTE R ET B
contributions 24 39
1,170 2,179
None of the above five highest paid individuals received DEREZEEEHFALTHEZMMES LB
emoluments in excess of HK$1 million. 181,000,000/ JT °
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to REFEE NREBWEQIEEEZES
the non-director, highest paid individuals as an inducement HATEZAEES US| HENBARERD
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for EEBMBES BB E -

loss of office.
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B 7% R M &

31 March 2010 Z&2—ZFF=H=+—H

28. FINANCE COSTS 28. M RBA
2010 2009
—E—EF —EENF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FET
Interest on: LUTFIEEZFE :
— bank borrowings wholly repayable -~ EAREFRE2HEEZZ
within five years RITERK 476 =
Imputed interest on convertible note AR EEZEERNE 368 1,822
Imputed interest on promissory note AREEZHEERER 453 -
1,297 1,822
29. TAXATION 29. RIA

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in
the consolidated financial statements as the Group incurred
a taxation loss for the year. Provision on profits assessable
elsewhere has been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing
in the countries in which the Group operates, based on

existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect

thereof.

HRAEERAFEEEBBER
B EELREMBHRRARTEBNEH
FHEE HithEZBRTEER DR
BAKEEBRERR 2RITEN 2
EREMREMBITHRAE -

2010 2009
—E—-TF —EEAEF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET THET
Current taxation: BEARR IR :
Provision for the year REERE
- PRC —FE 1,769 12,228
Deferred tax recognised FABRRAZIEL
during the year IR (46) =
1,723 12,228
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29. TAXATION - continued

Notes to the Financial Statements

The charge for the year is reconciled to the loss before
taxation per the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2010

B 7% R M &

31 March 2010 Z&E—ZF=H=+—H

29. NIF—iH

AEEXHERS ZHEBESRASIBRK
AEEZHRNT ¢

BE_E-SF=-AZ=+—HL=EE

Hong Kong PRC Total
Fi# HE it
HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %
TET FET FET
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRBLA (B518) &R (214,137) 9,224 (204,913)
Tax at applicable income tax rate  BEAFERERHEZ (35,333) (16.5) 2,306 250  (33,027) (16.1)
A
Tax effect of expenses and income A 1% = B B & H
not deductible or taxable for ZBEXRBA
tax purposes ZHBEE 32,107 15.0 (537) (5.8) 31,570 15.4
Tax effect of tax losses not TERERZHEEEZ
recognised BEzE 3,180 1.5 - - 3,180 1.5
Tax charge and effective AEEHELHR
tax rate for the year ERB=E (46) - 1,769 19.2 1,723 0.8
For the year ended 31 March 2009 BE-ZEZhFE=A=+—HILEE
Hong Kong PRC Total
BB H @t
HK$' 000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %
TER TET TET
Loss before taxation bR AT 18 (223,134) 44,902 (178,232)
Tax at applicable income tax rate %38 B Fr 55 = (36,817) (16.5) 11,226 25.0  (25,591) (14.4)
FTEZHE
Tax effect of expenses and income AN EBA
not deductible or taxable for BB 2EER
tax purposes BAZHKEZE 33,748 15.1 1,002 2.2 34,750 19.5
Tax effect of tax losses not WA 2B
recognised BEzRESE 3,069 1.4 = = 3,069 1.7
Tax charge and effective tax rate  ANFEEHEZHE R
for the year ERB=E - - 12,228 27.2 12,228 6.8
ZEEZEBEEEEEBERAA
F#H2009/2010
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31 March 2010 Z&2—ZFF=H=+—H

30. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE

COMPANY

For the year ended 31 March 2010, net loss of approximately
HK$332,382,000 (2009: HK$15,644,000) has been dealt
with in the consolidated financial statements of the

30. ELFIHBARGER

BE-Z-ZF=-HA=1t—HLEFEZ
BT 18 7 F 88 49332,382,0008 T (ZEZE 1
£ 115,644,000 7t) Bt AR A TGRS

Company. B o
31. LOSS PER SHARE 31. BB IR
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share AAREEAELEREARR B EEIE
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the TIREUTHIEE
following data:
2010 2009
—E—ZF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$' 000
THET FHET
Loss attributable to owners of RATEE A
the Company (211,283) (200,548)
2010 2009
—E-ZF —E2EENF
Weighted average number of ordinary 2 RTEBRME
shares in issue 4,495,111,986 1,938,440,073
Weighted average number of preference & 31718 5% IR fnfE
shares in issue 305,402,930 =
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ BUFTESREARAR #E

shares for the purpose of basic and

diluted loss per share

The calculation of diluted loss per share did not assume the
exercise of the convertible notes and share options existed at
31 March 2010 and 2009 as the exercise of the convertible
notes and share options would reduce loss per share,

therefore anti-dilutive.

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
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IRz BB R

4,800,514,916 1,938,440,073

TESREEEEBEYEBRTIERS
E-ZFER-ZFENF=A=+—HE
FHEZAUBREERBERE HTET
RREENERESSEREBERY
AmMERREESE -




32.

33.

34.

Notes to the Financial Statements

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2010 (2009:
Nil).

PLEDGED ASSETS

At 31 March 2010, certain bank deposits, prepaid lease
payments (Note 7) and investment properties (Note 8) of
the Group were pledged as collateral for certain banking
facilities granted to the Group and independent third party.

At 31 March 2009, certain bank deposits of the Group were
pledged as collateral for certain banking facilities.

At 31 March 2010 and 31 March 2009, the Company had
not pledged any assets at the end of the reporting period.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 13 November 2009, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, Timely Hero Enterprises Limited, entered into
an agreement Mr. Yung, a director of the Company, to
acquire 100% of the entire issued share capital of Nurture
Fit Limited and all obligations, liabilities and debts owing
or incurred by Nurture Fit Limited and its subsidiaries
to Mr. Yung, for a total contracted consideration of
HK$600,000,000. The aggregate amount of goodwill
arising as a result of the acquisition is approximately
HK$785,169,000. The acquisition was completed on 8
March 2010.

32.

33.

34,

B 7% R MY R

31 March 2010 Z&E—ZF=H=+—H

R
BEEfEEREE S ZEF=-A=1+—
BLEEERFEMARE (ZZEZFENEF
/) o

HEEH
R-B-FFE=ZA=+-8 F&£EE
FROEH  ANEERE (MW7) RR

B (EES) CWEM - FRAKER
BYF=FRERETRITHE KM -

R-ZZBZEAF=ZRA=+—8 x&EHE
TRITERCSHWEH  FHETRITHE
Bz m e

R-ZE—ZFF=A=+—-HRZZEZH
F=A=+—H A2aRBEHRL
EIRBEMEE o

1 R Bt I8 2 )
R-ZZEZEAF+—-—A+=H'EK272
EMBARKELCEBRATERANF
EEFESAET I HE  UFTHER
600,000,000 TWIEREBR AR Z
ERBEBTRARREGR D 8 REHK
BARENSESAERELEZFES
£ EEREY EREWEBMEEZE
BUEEE 5785,169,00058 7T o 2IEWE
ER=ZZE—FF=ANHAERK-°
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31 March 2010 Z&2—ZF=H=+—H

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

- continued

34. IRMRE 2 7 — &

Acquiree’s
carrying
amount before
combination
and fair value

aSHEIBIKBEZ
FRERAFHE
HK$’ 000
FExT
Net assets acquired: ki 2 EEFE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 13,191
Investment properties REWE 5,586
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERE 4,238
Inventories FE 88,954
Trade and other receivables and deposits ESRHEMERRERT S 195,596
Pledged bank deposits BIKIFRITER 14,095
Cash and bank balances B KRBT 19,301
Tax payables A FiE (1,285)
Borrowings B8 (41,040)
Trade and other payables B REMENSFIE (243,594)
Net assets EEFEE 55,042
Goodwill arising on acquisition (Note 70) WHSELE 2BHE (HaE10) 785,169
840,211
Total consideration at fair value satisfied by: HERE2ZAFEATHERNEZAT
Cash He 20,000
Promissory note R EYE 240,211
Non-voting convertible preference shares ERERTBRELR 580,000
Total consideration at fair value BREZAFE 840,211
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WHEEE 2RSSR L FEE
Cash consideration paid 2HRERE (20,000)
Cash and bank balances acquired EWE 2B S RIBITE 19,301
(699)

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
- continued

Notes:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 April 2009, total
Group turnover for the year would have been approximately
HK$602,086,000, and loss for the year would have been
approximately HK$247,483,000. The pro forma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily
an indication of turnover and results of the Group that
actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 April 2009, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.

The subsidiaries acquired during the year contributed
approximately HK$52,855,000 to the Group’s turnover and
profit after tax of approximately HK$2,379,000 for the year.

Goodwill arose in the business combination because the
cost of the combination included a control premium paid to
acquire Nurture Fit Limited. In addition, the consideration paid
for the combination effectively included amounts in relation
to the benefit of expected synergies, revenue growth, future
market development and the assembled workforce of Nurture
Fit Limited. These benefits are not recognised separately from
goodwill as the future economic benefits arising from them
cannot be reliably measured.

35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

On 29 January 2010, the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement that the Company agreed to
sell the entire issued share capital of Direct Way Group
Limited for a total consideration of HK$4,500,000. The
disposal was completed on 29 January 2009.

B 7% R MY R

31 March 2010 Z&E—ZF=H=+—H

34. IRMRE 2 7 — &

35.

(if)

(iii)

HBUBR—ZEEAFENAE —B RN
BEAEEAFECRAEERENS
602,086,000/ 7t FEFBERIENH
247,483,000/ 7T o 5 E & BHE 5 BF
Az BfF—EABREWBEEER=-Z
ZAENA - HBRAAEESERIE
CEEBRELEEEZ  FUFAERR
ES A

FR IRBEZHBARAREEEE
FBE BL#952,855,00058 0 ' AFR 2
BB &R B R #2,379,00058 7T ©

HERAEERRBREEERATX
N2 ZHREE  RBEBNELEBHXK
aff o b BMEHINZREER L
BRERAEERMRBHBRMRZFEE
B WaSER RRMHEBRE  URE
HERARZBBAF HARKEZE
R 3 2 RREEA) 5 R BE 7] SEHbET &
WZEF B EEFEDRER -

HERE LR

(a)

R-ZE—FF—-—HA=+hNH &2
AL —EESHZE Bt &ALQ
7 [ = L #1K {84,500,0005% Jt H
EEBEEEBRAAEZIMERITR
Ko HEEZHEER-_ZZhhE—A
“thHAZERK-




Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7% R 3= B &

31 March 2010 —E—ZFF=H=+—H
35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES - continued 35. HEMB AT —&
(@) - continued (@) —#&

Summary of the effects of the disposal of subsidiaries

HEMBAR 2 ERMMMT :

136

are as follows:

HK$'000
FE T
Net assets disposed of: FTHE2EEFRE:
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERZE 6,556
Trade and other receivables and deposits B Z Rk HEAMEWRREBERZS 522
Inventories =78 195
Cash and bank balances R RIBITERR 511
Tax payables FE 44 %5 18 3)
Trade and other payables B REMEMNRIE (3,741)
4,040
Attributable goodwill EhEE 12,500
16,540
Release of translation reserve R BRIE W15 (457)
Loss on disposal HEZEE (11,583)
4,500
Satisfied by: LUTRHIA R A :
Cash Re 4,500
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELEZRESRAFE:
Cash consideration HeE 4,500
Cash and bank balances B FIIRITER (511)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents RE&RRESZEBEERAEEHE 3,989

For the period from 1 April 2009 to the date of
disposal, the above subsidiaries were engaged in
provision of general hospital services. The turnover
contributed by the subsidiaries was approximately
HK$6,309,000 and loss of approximately
HK$2,691,000 has recognised in the Group’s loss for

the year ended 31 March 2010.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES - continued

(b)

On 29 January 2010, the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement that the Company agreed
to sell the entire issued share capital of Smart Peak
Limited for a total consideration of HK$2,000,000. The
disposal was completed on 29 January 2009.

B 7% R MY R

31 March 2010 Z&E—ZF=H=+—H

35. HEEMBAR &

(b)

Summary of the effects of the disposal of subsidiaries

are as follows:

N-—ZT—ZTFE—F=+HhA &R
AL —EHEEHSE Bt &AL
A E = & # A 182,000,00058 7T H
EBBRERAGAZEHERTR
Ko HEZHER-_ZZNLE—A

—thARM-

HEMBAR 2RERMMMT

HK$" 000
TET
Net assets disposed of: HEZEERE:
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 2,716
Trade and other receivables and deposits ZZREMEWRERIRE 1,397
Inventories FE 248
Cash and bank balances HERIIRITERR 505
Trade and other payables B REMEMNRE (591)
Amount due to a director ENESHE (2,508)
Amount due to a minority shareholder FEA 2 IR R FRIE (76)
Tax payables FE A4 %518 9)
1,682
Attributable goodwill EhEE 12,000
13,682
Release of translation reserve iR BREE W {15 (80)
Loss on disposal HEZEE (11,602)
2,000
Satisfied by: UTHAERZA
Cash Be 2,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZRERAFEE
Cash consideration RENRE 2,000
Cash and bank balances e RIBITEER (505)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents BRE&RBESZEERRAFE 1,495

For the period from 1 April 2009 to the date of
disposal, the above subsidiaries were engaged in
provision of general hospital services. The turnover
contributed by the subsidiaries was approximately
HK$3,313,000 and loss of approximately HK$465,000
has recognised in the Group’s loss for the year ended
31 March 2010.

H-ZEZENFNA—HEZHER
HAEARS - EIB AT ISR M
GEMEBERRE ZEMBATE
R ¥ 58#93,313,00058 T * mEE
#465,0008 TERAEBEHZ =
E-FSFE=-HA=1+—HIEFEZE

B -
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31 March 2010 Z&2—ZFF=H=+—H

36. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax balances
recognised and movements thereon during the current and

36. & HE IR
ATAFFERBEFERIZEEE
EHBAEBRET2RE :

prior year:
Deferred tax liabilities: BERFAR :
Convertible
notes
CIE: Y2 %
HK$’ 000
FET
At 1 April 2008, 31 March 2009 R-ZEENFHA—H -
and 1 April 2009 —EZNF=A
=+t—-BRK
—EZhFMA—H 181
Charge to equity for the year FREER R 501
Credited to consolidated statement FRFFAGZEEE
of comprehensive income for BmiR
the year (46)
At 31 March 2010 BR-E—EF=A
=+—H =L

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

UTDHAMB2|E WMET ZIELER
TRAERR DA

2010 2009

—E—25F —EENF

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

T#T FE&T

Deferred tax assets BREBIBEE - -
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIESE (636) (181)
(636) (181)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the
Company has unutilised tax losses of approximately
HK$67,493,000 (2009: HK$64,313,000) and HK$19,545,000
(2009: HK$19,207,000) respectively available to set off
against future assessable profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the unutilised tax losses due
to the unpredictability of future profits streams. These tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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RBEEHR AEBREADNTZAKRE A
HEEIB D B#67,493,0008 T (Z 2=
JLE : 64,313,000/ 7t) % 19,545,000
T (ZEEZNF : 19,207,00058 7t) 0 A
YEIK 85 R SR FE SR B & Fl o B A R 2R & A
FRE A TE B RS AR E
ERIAELEREEE -ZEBBEEA
EIRER 48 o
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37. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 37.
The Group were committed to make the following future
minimum lease payments in respect of land and buildings
rented under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due

B 7% R MY R

31 March 2010 Z&E—ZF=H=+—H

BERERIE
AEBRBEAA L RET 2 RS
KEHSTEUTARBRERSHRE
= =

as follows:
The Group
KM
2010 2009
—E—-E5F —EENF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TET FHE T
Within one year —FR 13,933 5,081
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_EEFE (BREEWME) 35,719 18,263
Over five years iBiEHF 13,601 19,777
63,253 43,121
38. COMMITMENTS 38. i

The Group and the Company had no significant
commitments at the end of the reporting period.

REBRA DR RERE MR EE KX
T o

39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 39. X RAR
The Company
b /N
2010 2009
—E—-ZF —EFENF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
THET FET
Guarantees given to bank, in BHBARMBAZ
respect of banking facilities IRITREEH 2 R1T

utilised by subsidiaries R 10,000 10,000
ZEEEEEEAERALQEA
£ 2009/2010
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31 March 2010 Z&2—ZFF=H=+—H

40. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

41.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The assets of the Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in funds under the control of trustee. The Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme,
which contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are
members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the PRC government. The Company’'s PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed
elsewhere in the financial statements, during the year, the
Group had entered into the following significant transaction
with related parties:

(a) Key management personnel
Remuneration for key personnel management,
including amount paid to the Company’s directors and

40. iRFTEFI T &Y

41.

AEERBEBEECERERERLEH
MABEFE (18] -FEzEER
AEEZEESRER  FABRRFTA
BEHEE AEEBEBEEFHEAS%
mEt BN - BETSEHERER -

ARRPENBARZ2EBERPEBAF
EECEAXERRABATEKE - &
RAZHEMBRRAARTFMAT 2B
THZEERKABR G S HRUABRGR
REF o AL B RNKE R E 21—
BEERARBAEELRTHER -

EXEABALES

BRUBRERAMBOFR RS R
S TR AEEBREBEBALETTS
BERARSG:

(a) FEEBAR
FTEEEASHFHN (BEMF26R
2IWENFALRAEERETERS

certain of the highest paid employee, as disclosed in HEECSFE)WMT :
Note 26 and 27, is as follows:
2010 2009
—E—-2F —EERE
HK$' 000 HK$'000
TET FET
Short-term employee benefits EHIEERER 2,407 2,410
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41.

42.

Notes to the Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS - continued

(b) On 8 March 2010, the Group acquired the entire issued
share capital of Nurture Fit Limited and its subsidiaries
from Mr. Yung, a director of the Company, at a
consideration of HK$600,000,000 (Note 34).

(c) Mr. Yung, a director of the Company, has entered into
a personal guarantee agreement dated 15 June 2009
with Shanghai Pudong Development Bank amounting
to approximately RMB 30,000,000 to secure bills
payable on behalf of the Group for a term of one year.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 18 June 2010, the Company announced that guaranteed
profit has not been met and cash compensation of
approximately HK$5,290,710 will be received from a vendor.
Details please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
18 June 2010.

B 7% R MY R

31 March 2010 Z&E—ZF=H=+—H

41. EXFRBALTEZ S &

42.

(b) R=E—=F=ANB K&EEMQ

(c)

AN EESEREEBARES
RATKREKMBARZIE TR
K R £600,000,0003 7T (Bt zE
34) o

AAREZFEZEER=-ZZN
FRATHEBELEBHRERET
1 AE#H ARY30,000,0007T Z
BAERGE URREEERE
HEEERT  BE—F -

BERHEER

R=Z—ZFFXA+/N\H KAFEM
HRREERERAE  RitgET K
EN#95,290,7108 T 2 B @E - F15E
SHARTAABAE-_ZT—ZFEXATN

Rz

Dffa o
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43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 43.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of which

EEMB LR
ARAR-E-BE=A=t-A2=

are limited liability companies, at 31 March 2010 are as EMEAR(ZBERAT)FBEAOT :

142

follows:

Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid
ordinary share/

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital  to the Group  Principal activities
B/ BRTR
B/ WREER HEEE(
MELERE X EMEFEE BREESLE FERH
Grandy Environmental (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong HK$3,010,000 100%  Manufacture and sales of
environmental protection
products and provision of
related services
BERR (BB BRLA B8 3,010,0003 7t 100% RERHERRER
R A48 B R 7
Grandy Trading and Services Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%  Sales of environmental
(H.K.) Limited protection products
BB E S RE (B8)ERAF BB 10,0008 7T 100% HERREM
Grand Brilliant Corporation Limited British Virgin Islands HK$ 1 100%  Provision of healthcare and
hospital management
services
RERZHE BT 100% REBERBREEZRS
Best Boom Resources Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100%  Provision of hospital
management services
ERERERAF KBELEE (EY 100%  REEREERS
Day View Group Limited British Virgin Islands US$1,000 76%  Investment holding
BREEERAF RBRLHS 1,000% T 76% REER
Hero Vision Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1,573 100%  Investment holding
BEREXBRAF RERLHE 1,5713% 7 100% REER
Merry Sky Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$9,000 100% Investment holding
BAREBRAF RBRLHE 9,000% 7T 100% HREEZR

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
Report 2009/2010

Annual




43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/

Notes to the Financial Statements

43

Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid
ordinary share/

B 7% R MY R

31 March 2010 Z&E—ZF=H=+—H

EEZME LT -\

Percentage of

equity interest
attributable

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital  to the Group  Principal activities
EMeI BERTR
B/ BEEER HREEG
MELRRE ERME EMEF@EE REEAL FERH
Fujian Maidsen Enterprises Company PRC RMB40,000,000 100%  Provision of healthcare and
Limited* hospital management
services
BREEREXARAT i A K%40,000,0007T 100% REBERBEREERYE
Edward Hospital Company Limited* PRC RMB40,000,000 55%  Provision of hospital services
EREREBRARAT & A K#40,000,0007 55%  REUERRS
Jiaxing City Shuguang Western and PRC RMB15,000,000 55%  Provision of hospital services
Chinese Composite Hospital
Company Limited*
REATEXTABLESBRARLA  HE AR %15,000,0007 55%  REUBRRE
Beiyi Renzhi (Beijing) Investment PRC RMB6,457,725 70.1%  Provision of healthcare and
Consultancy Limited* hospital management
services
TECE (R REEZAERAT hE ARM6,457,7257C 70.1% REBERBREERS
Shangrao City Xiehe Hospital Limited* PRC RMB3,000,000 70%  Provision of hospital services
LETHMERERA A HE A K#3,000,0007T 70% REERRE
Fujian Huihao Pharmaceutical PRC RMB30,000,000 100%  Pharmaceutical wholesale
Company Limited* and distribution business in
the PRC
BREABMTEFEEERAF hE AR %30,000,0007 100%  RPEZEMHBERD EXE
Putian Medicine Company Limited* PRC RMB5,000,000 100%  Pharmaceutical wholesale
and distribution business in
the PRC
GEEMEFEXERAT HE AR #%5,000,0007 100% RPBEZENHBRDHEER
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43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/

Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid
ordinary share/

43. TEMBLF —1&

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable

44,

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital  to the Group  Principal activities
30T BERTR
B/ WEHER FEEES
MELRRE ERME EMEFmEE REEALE FERH
Fujian Huiming Medicine Company PRC RMB5,000,000 100%  Pharmaceutical wholesale
Limited* and distribution business in
the PRC
BREEHEXERAR HE AR #5,000,0007 100%  RPEZEMHBERDEXE
Fujian Huihao Sihai Pharmaceutical PRC RMB15,856,000 99.29%  Pharmaceutical retail chain
Chain Company Limited* and distribution business in
the PRC
GREAEFNEBHEXEEERAF HE AR #15,856,0007 99.29% RHEZENTEEHER
DHEK
# The English transliteration of the Chinese names in this report, ARIRE P X B2 R EEMER

where indicated, is included for information only, and should
not be regarded as the official English names of such Chinese
names.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (which
includes bill payables, bank borrowings, promissory note
and convertible note), cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and accumulated losses.
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44. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued 44. SXxRETE -&

Gearing ratio HEEARILE
The gearing ratios at 31 March 2010 and 31 March 2009 R-BE—EF=A=Z=1+—HR=-=ZBZEH
were as follows: F=ZA=+—HZEEEBLENT :
2010 2009
—E-25F —EERE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TFTET FET
Debt (note (a)) &% (Bfat(a) 320,193 6,469
Cash and cash equivalents HENBEEEEEE (76,986) (93,761)
Net debt (ET L 243,207 (87,292)
Equity (note (b)) MR (HfaE (b)) 703,984 327,823
Gearing ratio EEBF/LE=R 0.35 N/AT 3 F
Notes: B &E
(@) Debt comprises bill payables, bank borrowings, convertible (a) EBEEEEELEE - RITEE - TER
note and promissory note as detailed in notes 18, 19, 21 and ZERALEE  F152 B SHAME
22 respectively. 18+19+21K22 -
(b)  Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group. (b) BEAEBEAEEREEARRREE -
ZEEEESEEERAA
FH® 2009/2010
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

45. &M TR

(a) EMIRSW

2010 2009
—E—Z5F —EENF
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T#T FE&T
Financial assets MEEE
Loans and receivables (including EXRRERRE (BERER
cash and cash equivalents) HEZEEEE) 318,122 112,036
Derivative financial instruments PHEARAFEEBESZYR
classified as fair value through ZUTEEMIA
profit or loss 96 3
Financial liabilities MEAR
Amortised cost 88 A AR 543,000 37,616

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks: market risk (including currency risk and interest

rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s

overall risk management programme focuses on the

unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to

minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s

financial performance. The management manages

and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate

measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

(i) Market risk

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the

financial risks of changes in foreign exchange

rates and interest rates.

Market risk exposures are measured using

sensitivity analysis.

There has been no change to the Group’s

exposure to market risks or the manner in which

it manages and measures the risk.
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

()

Market risk — continued

Foreign currency risk management

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. The management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign

B 7% R MY &

31 March 2010 Z&E—ZF=H=+—H

45. @M T R -8
(b) MERBREEEBERBE &

(i) WHME—#&
SRR EE
AEEETHE QBB AN
ETZHEERRBED  E4
SEEZINERR - EEES
ERHMERE - LEREF
By 3o BB K DB R B HEE AT e o

RI¥BE B - NREELAINETT

currency denominated monetary assets and BrEMEEREREBZIR
monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as EEWNT :
follows:
Liabilities Assets
'R HE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-ZF "TTHhEFE ZB-BE _"—TEZNF
HK$’ 000 HK$"000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FE T TET FEx
RMB AR 292,527 12,423 392,108 56,126
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

()

Market risk — continued

Foreign currency risk management

- continued

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the effects of
fluctuation in RMB.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity
to a 5% increase and decrease in the Hong
Kong dollars against the relevant foreign
currencies. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to
key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and
foreign currency forward contracts, and adjusts
their translation at the period end for a 5%
change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes external loans as well as loans
to foreign operations within the Group where the
denomination of the loan is in a currency other
than the currency of the lender or the borrower.
A positive number below indicates an increase
in profit and other equity where the Hong Kong
dollars strengthen 5% against the relevant
currency. For a 5% weakening of the Hong Kong
dollars against the relevant currency, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the profit
and other equity, and the balances below would
be negative.
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

()

Market risk — continued

Foreign currency risk management
- continued

Sensitivity analysis — continued

B 7% R MY &

31 March 2010 Z&E—ZF=H=+—H

45. @M T R -8
(b) MERBREEEBERBE &

()

T 4% B —
SRR EE -

BRE S —E
Impact of RMB

AR®ZRE
2010 2009
—E2—FF ZEBAF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THER TERT
Other equity Hh &% 1,324 9,207

Note:

This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding
on receivables and payables denominated in respective
currencies at the end of the reporting period.

Interest rate risk management

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk relates
primarily to variable-rate borrowings. It is the
Group's policy to keep its borrowings at floating
rate of interests so as to minimise the fair value
interest rate risk. As at 31 March 2010, the
Group did no have borrowings at floating rate of
interests.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on
financial assets and financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section
of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
HIBOR arising from the Group’s Hong Kong dollar
denominated borrowings.

By EE

LT3 E Z AR E RS R AEE
E¥THE 2 BWOA R B A
P& 2 BRR TR o
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31 March 2010 Z&2—ZFF=H=+—H

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

()

Market risk — continued

Interest rate risk management — continued
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for both derivatives and non-derivative
instruments at the end of the reporting period.
For variable-rate borrowings, the analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of liability
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis
point increase or decrease in HIBOR is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March
2010 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$7,000 (2009: HK$12,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable rate borrowings during the
year ended 31 March 2010.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has
decreased during the current period mainly due
to the reduction in variable rate borrowings.
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

(i)

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2010, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties and financial
guarantees provided by the Group is arising from:

o the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position;
and

o the amount of contingent liabilities in
relation to the financial guarantees provided
by the Group as disclosed in Note 39.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual trade debt and debt investments
at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks
with high credit ratings, the Group does not
have any other significant concentration of credit
risk. Trade and other receivables consist of a
large number of customers, spread across diverse
industries and geographical areas.
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued
(iii) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of directors,
which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-term
funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve
borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

As at 31 March 2010, the Group has available
unutilised overdrafts and short and medium
term bank loan facilities of approximately
HK$2,000,000 (2009: HK$2,000,000) and
HK$39,350,000 (2009: HK$8,000,000)
respectively.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities
which are included in the maturity analysis
provided internally to the key management
personnel for the purpose of managing liquidity
risk. For non-derivative financial liabilities, the
tables reflect the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The
tables include both interest and principal cash
flows.
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 45. €M T R &
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MBREEEERRBE &
policies — continued
(iii) Liquidity risk management - continued (iii) RODELRAREE-&
At 31 March 2010 R-2—ZLF=A=+—H
Weighted
average Total Total
effective undiscounted carrying
interest rate  Within 1year 2to5years Over5years  cash flows amount
mEgEy KA
REf® —R —Eif BRIE HEREE FE#E

% HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000
FER FER FER FER FTER

Non-derivative financial ~ Efi&HERR

liabilities
Trade and other payables ~ EZREMERFE - 250,748 - - 250,748 250,748
Bank borrowings BARE 4.9% 47,310 - - 47,310 47,310
Amounts due to minority D HBRR R
shareholders A 719 - - 719 719
Promissory note EEES 3.0% - - 290,000 290,000 240,482
Convertible note TARZE 10.97% - - 6,500 6,500 3741
298,777 - 296,500 595,277 543,000
At 31 March 2009 R-ZZEZEAF=ZA=+—8
Weighted
average Total Total
effective undiscounted carrying
interest rate ~ Within 1year ~ 2to 5years  Qver 5 years cash flows amount
it S RER
BRAZ £ “E5f BRIE RERAE REAE

% HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TRT TRT TEn TRT TRR

Non-derivative financial ~ FEfiEMERE

liabilities
Trade and other payables B REMEMFIE - 30,502 105 - 30,607 30,607
Amounts due to minority B D HERRE

shareholders HE 540 - - 540 540
Convertible note TEREE 6.8% 6,500 - - 6,500 6,469

37,542 105 = 37,647 37,616

BEEKREBRAA
200 1o 133
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(c)

Fair value of financial instruments
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

(i) the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments)
with standard terms and conditions and traded
on active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices and ask
prices respectively; and

(i) the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices or rates
from observable current market transactions as
input. For an option-based derivative, the fair
value is estimated using option pricing model (for
example, the Black-Scholes option pricing model
and Binomial option pricing model).

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable:

1. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(c) Fair value of financial instruments

- continued

Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position

— continued

2. Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices); and

3. Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

45.

B 7% R MY &

31 March 2010 Z&E—ZF=H=+—H

emMI AR
() EMIAZLFE-&

RGN BEMRREAERZ 2 FHE

= g
iTE —4E

2. 2RAFEHEDRBEER
BEZEE (BER) REE
(NFRBER) TBEE AR
B(TrEERAER2RE)
. R

3. B3RAFEAEDRAMER
i (BELFERTERETS
HECEERBBE2BAME
(FAEERARE)) & -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
1% 2% 3% it
HK$’000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000
FET FET FET FET
Financial assets SMEE
Derivative financial TTESmI A
instruments - 96 - 96

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in the
current year.

COMPARATIVE

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified/
restated to conform with the current year’s presentation and
accounting treatment.

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

On 8 March 2010, the Group acquired the entire issued
share capital of Nurture Fit Limited and its subsidiaries at
a consideration of HK$600,000,000, the consideration of
HK$290,000,000 and HK$290,000,000 were satisfied by the
Company’s preference shares and issue of promissory note
respectively.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 25 June 2010.
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Financial Summary

MBRE

At 31 March 2010 R=EB—ZFF=A=+—H

For the year ended 31 March
BE-A=+—HLEEE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
“P-%F _TTHhE ZEETNF ZEELF ZEBEXF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
FHET TER THER FTER TER

Result E 4
Turnover EER 179,765 170,087 135,943 77,521 41,088
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRELARF, (B5E) (204,913)  (178,232) (1,589) 8,096 3,655
Taxation FiE (1,723) (12,228) (6,184) (1,227) (561)
Net profit/(loss) for the year ~ FE&A,/ (FE) F5 (206,636)  (190,460) (7,773) 6,869 3,094
Profit/(loss) attributable to LU A FE4E
B (E8)
— Owners of the Company —RDEEE A (211,283)  (200,548) (17,891) 5,981 3,191
— Minority interests - DERRESR 4,647 10,088 10,118 888 (97)
(206,636)  (190,460) (7,773) 6,869 (3,094)
As at 31 March
R=B=+—H
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—EB-%F —FINF ZFTEN\F ZFTLF —TERF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TH#T FET FTHT FET FHET
Assets and liabilities BERER
Total assets HEE 1,282,732 394,977 586,649 172,976 59,162
Total liabilities =R (736,842) (38,915) (82,165) (38,249) (28,144)
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